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Independent Auditor’s Report

To The Members of Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Sandhar Automotive
Systems Private Limited (“the Company"), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2023,
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in
Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “the standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS") and accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, the Profit (financial
performance including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the
year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the standalone financial
statements.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board's Report, but does not include the standalone
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we will
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act ——+
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair vi
of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles genefa
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accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Board of Directars either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit. .
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with rel (,?_ﬁl‘_‘ﬁi;l \:\
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationshipj,sx” d \‘L\\
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in “Annexure
A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so

far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
Statement of Change in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account.

IV. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified

V.

Vi

under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

VII. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

a) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

b) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

c) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d)

i. The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the Note 37 to the accounts, no funds (which are material either individually
or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in
any other person or entity, including foreign entity (‘Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

ii. The Management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the Note 37 to the accounts, no funds (which are material either individually
or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or entity,
including foreign entity (“Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on beha
the Ultimate Beneficiaries.




iii, Based on such audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) & (b)
above, contain any material mis-statement.

iv. As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the
Company only w.e.f. April 1, 2023, accordingly reporting under Rule 11(g) of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year
ended March 31, 2023.

e) The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

3. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ report under Section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has
not paid remuneration to its directors during the current financial year. Accordingly, the provisions
of and limit laid down under section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable.

For B.R. Gupta & Co.
Chartered Accountants,
Firm Registration Number 008352N.__

7

II.-' / .-\.__I._/I"' e -\‘\:—‘I{>§\
|'I,'. _!, \\ I;~
(EACRE =
S

(Deepak Agarwal) NG
Partner =
Membership Number 073696

UDIN: 22,072 b9 6 Bla VKS 1342

Place of Signature: New Delhi

Date: -/ MAY 2023



Annexure 'A' To the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date on the Standalone financial
statements of Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited

The Annexure referred to in Paragraph 1 under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements’
section of Independent Auditors Report to the members of the Company on the standalone financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2023, we report that:

i) Inrespect of Property, Plant & Equipment:

a) (A)The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(B)The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by which
fixed assets are verified at regular intervals. In accordance with this programme, all fixed
assets were verified during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.In our opinion, such periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and records examined by us, the
Company does not hold any immovable property. Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us,
the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets or
both during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(i)( d) of the Order are not
applicable.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been
initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the
Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules
made thereunder. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(i)(e) of the Order are not
applicable.

i) In respect of its inventory:

a) On the basis of information and explanation provided by the management, inventories have
been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion the frequency of
physical verification followed by the Management is reasonable. According to the
information and explanation given to us, no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate
for each class of inventory between physical inventory and book records were noticed on
physical verification.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined
by us, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits during the year in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii) (b) of the Order are not
applicable.

iy a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not provided
any guarantee or security nor granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or any other parties,
Further, the Company has made investment in equity shares of its subsidiary. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(iii) (a),(c),(d),(e) & (f) of the Order are not applicable.

company are not prejudicial to the company'’s Interest.

iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examinaijt
of the records, the Company has not given any loans, or provided any guarantee or securifyses
specified under Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Company has not providee: -
any guarantee or security as specified under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Furth s ACCA



vi)

vii)

viii)

the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in
relation to investments made during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits during the year and
had no unclaimed deposits at the beginning of the year within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76
of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended).
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

On the basis of available information and explanation provided to us, the Central Government
has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Amendment Rules, 2016
dated July 14, 2016 & December, 2017 respectively to the current operations carried out by the
Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

(a) The Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods
and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, duty of customs,
cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, to the appropriate authorities. Further, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of
more than six months from the date they become payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues in respect of
statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (vii)(a) above that have not been deposited with the
appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us,
there are no unrecorded transactions that have been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(viii) of the Order are not applicable.

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has no loans or other borrowings and not liable to pay any interest thereon to any lender as at
reporting date.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not obtained any term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order are
not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any
funds on short-term basis. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order are not
applicable.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the standalone financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken
any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us,
we report that the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities
held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
did not raise moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(x)(a) of the ,Q){gﬁﬁ'@i“rgot
applicable. £ ) c?.:‘,\
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(b) During the year, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible). Accordingly,
provisions of clause 3 (x)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

xi) (a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud on
or by the Company, noticed or reported during the year nor have we been informed of such case
by the management.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no report under
sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the year.

xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xii)(a) to (c) of the
Order are not applicable.

xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,, all transactions
entered with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and
the details have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards. Further in pursuance of section 177, Company is not required
to form audit committee and accordingly the provisions of section 177 are not applicable.

xiv) (@) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company is not required to have an
internal audit system as per provision contained in Section 138 of Companies Act 2013..

(b) The company did not have an internal audit system for the period under audit. Accordingly,
provisions of clause 3 (xiv)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with the directors or persons connected with them
covered under Section 192 of the Act. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the order are
not applicable.

xvi) (a) The company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934). Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 (xvi) (a) to (c) of the order are not
applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no core investment
company (CIC) within the group ( as defined in core investment companies ( Reserve Bank)
Direction, 2016). Accordingly, provision of clause 3(xvi)(d) of the order are not applicable.

xvii) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
incurred cash losses during the current financial year. However, Company incurred cash loss of
T 177.33 Lakh in the immediately preceding financial year.

xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.
Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 (xviii) of the Order are not applicable.

xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of
the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not capable, of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due withineg -
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assu S éy ;
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as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the||



as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts
up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that al|
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the company as and when they fall due.

xx) The provision of section 135 of Companies Act are not applicable to the company, accordingly
the provision of clause (xx)(a) & (b) of the order are not applicable to the company.

xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included
in this report.

For B.R. Gupta & Co.

Chartered Accountants, o
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Annexure 'B' to the Independent Auditors' Report of even date on the Standalone
Financial Statements of Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of
Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in
conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audlt of Internal Financlal Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAl). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”)
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAIl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of
the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone financial statements
A company's internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to standalone
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company;, and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Ind AScf'{ta_pcta@r\%
financial statements. (57 NG
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone financial
statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to standalone financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes In conditions, or thal the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system with reference to standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial stalemenls were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based
on the internal control with reference to standalone financial statements criteria establlshed by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For B.R. Gupta & Co.
Chartered Accountants,
Firm Registration Number 008352N
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Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited

(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)

Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

(All amounts are In lakh € unless otherwise stated)

As At As At
Particulars Note No. March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Assets
Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 1,372.38 1,685.93
(b) Capita! work-in-progress 3A 13.35 .
(c) Other Intangible Assets 4 0.44 1.12
(d) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 5 5.50 0.50
(i) Other Financial Assets 6 29.86 17.65
(e) Deferred Tax Assets (net) 8 233.39 267.13
. (f) Non-Current Tax Assets (Net) 7 0.96 0.63
(g) Other Non-Current Assets 12 i -
Total Non-Current Assets 1,655.88 1,972.96
Current Assets
(a) Inventories 744.12 6831.38
{b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables 513.44 439.48
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 66.44 47.91
(iii) Bank Balances other than (ii) above = -
(iv) Other Financial Assets 4.58 -
(c) Other Current Assets 475.72 589.04
Total Current Assets 1,804.30 1,707.81
Total Assets 3,460.18 3,680.77
Equity And Liabilities
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 3,099.63 3,099.63
(b} Other Equity (1,078.73) (1,164.84)
Total Equity 2,020.90 1,934.79
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Provisions 23.43 16.57
Total Non-Current Liabilities 23.43 16.57
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade payables
(A) Total outstanding Dues to Micro and Small
Enterprises 206.91 224.11
(B) Total Outstanding Dues to other than Micro and
Small Enterprises 1,145.60 1,374.56
(i) Other Financial Liabilities 28.74 -
(b) Other Current Liabilities 33.64 129.79
(c) Provisions 0.96 0.95
Total Current Liabilities 1,415.85 1,729.41
Total Equity And Liabilities 3,460.18 3,680.77
Summary of significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements
As per our Report of even date attached
For B.R. Gupta & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limlted (Formerly Known as

Firm's Registration Number 00835/2/:51.—,-_- = Sandhar Daeswha Automotive Systems Private Limited)

(D&epak Agarwal)
Partner
Membership Number 073696

(Yatendra Singh Chauhan)
Director
DIN: 03555013

Place of Signature:New Delhi

pate: = & MAY 2023

(Ashish Vatsa)

(Sakshi Goyal)
Company Secretary
Membership No. 63137

(Naveen, Kumar)
Chief Ejnancial Officer




Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited
(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are In lakh ¥ unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended March For the year ended

P b
articulars Note No 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
I Revenue from Operations 19 6,065.29 1,435.69
Il Othor Income 20 1.89 1.33
Il Total Income (I+i1) 6,067.18 1,437.02
IV Expenses
(a) Cost of Materials Consumed 21 5,252.94 1,554.53
(b) Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Work in Progress 22 15.71 (264.65)
(c) Employee Benefits Expense 23 183.60 66.34
(d) Finance Costs 24 2.18 57.52
(e) Depreclation And Amortlsation Expense 25 170.23 178.34
(f) Other Expenses 26 320.44 200.61
Total expenses 5,9456.10 1,792.69
V Profit/ (loss) before exceptional items and tax (lI-1V) 122.08 (356.67)
VI Exceptional ltems = 0.50
VIl Profit/(Loss) before tax 122.08 (356.17)
VIl Tax expense: 8
(a) Current tax 0.33 -
(b) Deferred tax 34.23 (3.06)
(c) Income tax adjustment for earlier year z 0.60
Total tax expense/(benefit) 34.56 (2.46)
IX Profit/(Loss) for the year 87.52 (353.71)
X Other Comprehensive Income
(i) ltems that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss
(a) Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans (1.90) (2.66)
i)y Income tax on items that will not be reclassified subsequently to Profit & Loss 0.49 0.69
Other Comprehensive Galn/(Loss) (1.41) (1.97)
XI Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year (IX+X) 86.11 (355.68)
X1l Earnings/(loss) Per Share (face value ¥ 10 per share) 27
1) Basic (amount in %) 0.28 (1.14)
2) Diluted (amount in ¥) 0.28 (1.14)
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements
As per our Report of even date attached
For B.R. Gupta & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited (Formerly Known as
Firm's Reglstration Number 0083}5__2!"4_'0_'" Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)
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Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited
(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)
Standalone Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2023

{All amounts are In lakh 2 unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Profit/(Loss) before tax 122.08 (356.17)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation And Amortisation Expense 170.23 178.34
Finance Cost 218 57.52
Interest Income (1.31) (1.22)
Loss on sale of PPE 24.08 -
Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes 317.26 (121.53)
Movement in working capital
Inviease In nventorles (112.74) (683.62)
Inciwase In Tiade Recwivables (73.06) (386.02)
Increase In Other Current And Non-Current Financial Assets (16.80) (1.10)
Dacrease/(Increase) In Other Current And Non-Current Asacts 112.99 (166.82)
Increase/(Dacrease) In Trade Payables (246.15) 1,392.36
Increase In Current And Non-Current Provisions 4.97 1.20
Increase/(Decrease) In Other Current And Non-Current Liabilites (71.15) 67.54
Cash (used in)/generated from operating actlvitles post working capltal changes (85.57) 202.01
Income tax paid (net) (0.33) (0.43)
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activlities (A) (85.90) 201.58
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Purchase of Property, Plant And Equipment (21.97) 53.75
Sale of Property, Planl And Equipment 128.63 -
Investment of shares (5.00) (0.50)
Increase/(Decrease) in Creditors for Capital Expenditure 3.74 (18.45)
Interest Received From Deposits 1.31 1.22
Net cash flow generated from investing actlvities (B) 106.61 36.02
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Proceeds from Short Term Borrowings - (133.18)
Finance Costs Paid (2.18) (57.52)
Net cash used in financing activities (C) (2.18) (190.70)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 18.53 46.90
Cash and cash equivalents at the begining of the year 47.91 1.01
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 66.44 47.91
Components of cash & Cash Equivalent
Cash on hand - -
With banks - on current account and deposits with banks 66.44 47.91

Total Cash and Cash equivalent (Note No. 12) 66.44 47.91
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements
As per our Report of even date attached

For B.R. Gupta & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited (Formerly Known as Sandhar

Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)

(Ashish Vatsa)
Chief Executive Officer
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Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited
(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are in lakh ¥ unless otherwise stated)

A Equity Share Capital Amount
For the year ended 31 March, 2023
Equity shares of #10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid at 1 April, 2022 3,099.63
Changes during lhe year .
At March 31, 2023 3,099.63
For the year ended 31 March, 2022
Equity shares of 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid at 1 April, 2021 3,099.63
Changes during the year &
At March 31, 2022 3,099.63

B Other equity
For the year ended March 31, 2023
Description Reserves and surplus o
Retained Earings :
Balance as at March 31, 2022 (1,164.84) (1,164.84)
Profit for the year 87.52 87.52
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan (net of tax) (1.41) (1.41)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 (1,078.73) (1,078.73)
For the year ended March 31, 2022
Description Reserves and surplus Total
Retained Earings :
Balance as at March 31, 2021 (809.16) (809.16)
Loss for the year (353.71) (353.71)
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan (net of tax) (1.97) 1.97) |
Balance as at March 31, 2022 (T,164.34) (1,1

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements

As per our Report of even date attached

For B.R. Gupta & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Number 003352N_ —
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Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited
(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daeswha Automotive Systems Private Limited)
Standalone Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are in lakh ¥ unless otherwise stated)

Note 1: Corporate Information

Sandhar Automative Systems Private Limited (incorporated originally as Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited on 20th January
2017 ) is a Private Limited Company incorporated under the Provision of Companies Act 2013.The name of Company has changed from
Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited to Sandhar Automotlve Systems Private Limited w.e.f. January 06, 2022 The Company is
primarily engaged in the business of manufacture, service, import, export, trade, promote, pack, repack, assemble, reassemble, design, modify,
buy, sell, repalr and otherwise to act as wholesale dealers of all kinds of automotive fusl pumps, filters, starter motors, wiper blades,
accessories, emisslon controliing, engine combustion and calibration units, and other ancillary automotive modules & parts. The registered
. office of the Company is located at Sandhar Components Behrampur, Khasra No.1747/1218,11,Behrampur road, Village Khandsa, Gurugram,
Gurgaon, Haryana, India, 122001.
The financials statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 were approved by the Board of Directors on May 04, 2023.

Note 2: Statement of Compliance:
Blulviment of Compliance: In asorardanaa with tha nntlfloation inauad by Miniatry of Corporate Affaire, the Campany has adopted Indian
Accounting Standards (referred to as "Ind AS") notifled under tha Companles (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 with effect from April
01, 2017.

Basis of Preparation: These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS as notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant presentation requirements of the
Companies Act 2013. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention on accrual and going
concern basis except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair value as required under relevant Ind AS. The financial
statements are presented in  and all values are rounded to the nearest Lakhs upto two decimal places except otherwise stated.

Going Concern

The board of directors have consldered the financial position of the Company as at March 31, 2023, the projected cash flows and financial
performance of the Company for at least twelve months from the date of approval of these financlal statements as well as planned cost and
cash improvement actions, and believe that the plan for profitability remains on course. The board of directors have taken actions to ensure that
appropriate long-term cash resources are In place at the date of signing the accounts to fund the Company's operations.

Recent Accounting Pronouncement

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as
issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, which
are as below. The effective date for adoption of this amendment are from annual periods beginning on or after April 01, 2023:

- Amendment to Ind AS 1- Presentation of Financial Statements

- Amendment to Ind AS 8- Accounting Policies, Change in Accounting Estimates and Errors

- Amendment to Ind AS 12- Income Taxes

The Company has evaluated the amendment and there will not be any impact on its financial statements.

Note 2.1 : Significant Accounting Policles
a) Significant accountin dgements, e and ass

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of
assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

~

Judgements:
In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

~—

Estimates and Assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company
based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing clrcumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of
the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Income taxes

The Company is subject to income tax laws as applicable in India. Significant judgment is required in determining provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The
Company recognises liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Recoverabllity of deferred taxes B Pl
In assessing the recoverability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is probable that taxable profit \qgl'iﬁe;{.bﬂvéﬁqbih‘:‘a\gainst
which the losses can be utilised. The ultimate realisation of deferred tax assets is dependent ugon Siye gengration of fiiture taxable-intome
Sle: ed\futurg/taxable in ﬁé{qg tax

%@_;){eﬁ\'[ﬂ%u]j “‘3]

\ =

planning strategies in making this assessment.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each
change in depreciation expense in future periods.



Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited
(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)
Standalone Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

b

c

—

—

Defined benefit plans & other long term benefits

The present value of the gratuity and leave encashment are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making
various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities Involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined beneflt obligation is highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. The parameter most subject to change s the
discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of
government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment bensfit obligation. The mortality rate is based on publicly
available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes.
Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries.

Contingencles

Contingent Liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the company, including legal and other claims.
By virtue of their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur, the assessment of
the existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves exercise of significant judgements and the use of estimates regarding
outcome of future events.

Current versus non-current classlification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

Assets:

An asset is treated as current when it is:

a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.

b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading

c) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

All other assets are classifiod as non-current assets.

Liabllities:

A liability is current when:

(a) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

(b) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

(c) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

(d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Operating cycle: The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has identified normally twelve months as its operating cycle.

Prope and Equi

Property, plant and equipment and capital work In progress are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Such cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets
includes the cost of materials and direct services, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition for their
intended use and cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition
criteria are met.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included In the cost of the respective asset if the
recoghnition criteria for a provision are met.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss within other income.

Depreciation: Depreciation is to be provided using the Straight Line Method as per useful life specified in schedule Il to the Companies Act,
2013 except in the following cases where useful life has been estimated by the Management :-

Assets As per Schedule Il | As per Management Assessment
Motor Vehicles 8 years 6 vears
Servers & Networks 6 vears 3 vears
Tools 15 years 6 years

Depreciation is calculated on a pro-rata basis from the date of additions. On assets sold, discarded, etc. during the year, depreciation is
provided up to the date of sale/discard. Assets costing up to ¥5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of acquisition. Further, the Schedule Il to
the Companies Act, 2013 requires that useful iife and depreciation for significant components of an asset should be determined seperately. The
identification of significant components is matter of technical judgement and Is to be decided on case to case basis; wherever applicable.

Subsequent costs: The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is to be recognised in the carrying amount of the
item of property, plant and equipment, if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Company and
its cost can be measured reliably with the carrying amount of the replaced part getting derecognised. The cost for day-to-day servicing of
property, plant and equipment to be recognised in statement of profit and loss as and when incurred.
o)
©

Capital work in progress: Capital work in progress comprises the cost of fixed assets that are no
=

date.




Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited
(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)
Standalone Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

d) Intangible Assets

e

—

f)

h) Leases

—

Recognition and measurement
Intangible Assets with finite useful lives are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment loss, if any.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the
Company.

Amortisation and useful lives: Other Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful life and assessed for Impairment
whenever there is an indication that the other intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
other intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the
expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method,
as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on other Intanglble assels with finite lives Is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset, Amortisation is calculated
over the cost of the asset, or other amount substituted for cost.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consists of interest and amortlzatlon of anclilary costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial perlod of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing
cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Foreign Currencies

Functional and presentational currency

The Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (%) which is also the Company's functional currency. Functional currency is
the currency of the primary economic environment in which a Company operates and is normally the currency in which the Company primarily
generates and expends cash. All the financial information presented In ¥ except where otherwise stated.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign cutrencles are Initially recorded by the Company at the functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first
qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the
reporting date. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are retranslated to the functional currency
at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the
Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or services. To recognize revenues, the company apply the following five step
approach:

(1) Identify the contract with a customer

(2) identify the performance obligations in the contract

(3) determine the transaction price,

(4) allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

(5) recognize revenues when a performance obligation is satisfied.

At contract inception, the Company assesses its promise to transfer products or services to a customer to identify separate performance
obligations, The Company applies judgement to determine whether each product or services promised to a customer are capable of being
distinct, and are distinct in the context of the contract, if not, the promised product or services are combined and accounted as a single
performance obligation.

For performance obligations where control is transferred over time, revenues are recognized by measuring progress towards completion of the
performance obligation. The selection of the method to measure progress towards completion requires judgment and is based on the nature of
the promised products or services to be provided.

The method for recognizing revenues and costs depends on the nature of the goods sold & services rendered:

(i) Local Sales & Job Work :

Local Sales are to be recognized at the point of dispatch of goods to the customers & sales are reported net of trade discount and sales tax,
and inclusive of packing charges.

(ii) Rendering of services :

Revenue from the Installation & Commissioning services and income from shared services is to be recognised by reference to the stage of
completion. Stage of completion is measured by reference to cost incurred to date as a percentage of total estimated cost for each contract.
When the contract outcome cannot be measured reliably, revenus is recognised only to the extent that the expenses incurred are eligible to be
recovered.

(iii) Other income: Interest income is recognized using the Effective Interest Rate (‘EIR’) method. The EIR is the rate th?pgxacily_gispﬁhnts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period where appro -gie‘ A6 the et } ing

amount of the financial asset. The EIR is computed basis the expected cash flows by considerjng glEthey goatractys I-ierms of the tna

contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosurg of
inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to cotro)
of time in exchange for consideration.



Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited
(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)
Standalone Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying
assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets. If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company
at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of
the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.

Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including insubstance fixed payments) less any lease Incentlves recelvable,
varlable lease payments that depend on an Index ot a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under regidual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate. Varlable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to
reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if
there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change
in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short term leases and leases of low value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition
exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

i) Inventories

D

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of raw material is determined on the basis of First-in-First-Out
(FIFO) method.

- The cost of manufactured finished goods and work-in-progress includes raw material value determined on the basis of First-in-First-Out (FIFO)
method and includes conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

- Stores & Consumables, Packing Materials, Tools & Dles are valued at lower of net realizable value or cost on the basis of First-in-First-Out
(FIFO) Method.

- Stock in Transit is valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Scrap is valued at estimated net realizable value.

Employee's Benefits

Short Term Employee Benefits: All employee benefits expected to be settled wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are
classified as short-term employee benefits. When an employee has rendered service to the Company during an accounting period, the
Company recognises the undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service as an expense
unless another Ind AS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an asset. Benefits such as salaries, wages and short-term
compensated absences, bonus and ex-gratia etc. are recognised in statement of profit and loss in the period in which the employee renders the
related service.

Defined Contribution Plan

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions to a statutory authority and will have
no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme
and contributions paid/payable towards Provident Fund are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss during the period in
which the employee renders the related service.

Defined Benefit Plan

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contrlbution plan. The Company has an obligation_towards
gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. The plan provides for a lump sum payment to veste ,d’-pil:npln;iy.e’.qs._gt
retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount based on the respective employee’s sa!a’ry-g‘ﬁd‘thaltandpé\

of employment. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. The Company accounts for the liability for gratult;/,b_f?’ efits p ab‘l??!jrj'\:\
future based on an independent actuarial valuation report using the projected unit credit method as at the year end. f[ ""’_?I'-!E‘.Rf é;:i H :__,_-,ﬂ

\ ), J{I'..- /
The obligations are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rate is generally bas&{‘ﬁqu_m_g_méﬂ{ej/
yields available on Government bonds at the reporting date with a term that matches that of the liabilitles. \‘i{-}'} ,rm_l;j_(‘.'(__\';i‘/
Re-measurements, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return=8nplan
assets (excluding interest and if applicable), is reflected immediately in Other Comprehensive Income unde statement of profit and loss. All
other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in statement of profit and loss as emplayeerbanéfib gx

recognised in Other Comprehensive Income will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss hg
in the statement of changes in equity. Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of any d %_“ :
curtailment or settlement occurs. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service cpsly,

s\part of retained earnings
ake recognised when the
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k)

Other Long Term Employee Benefits

As per the Company's policy, eligible leaves can be accumulated by the employees and carried forward to future perlods to either be utilised
during the service, or encashed. Encashment can be made during the service, on early retirement, on withdrawal of scheme, at resignation by
employee and upon death of employee. The scale of benefits is determined based on the senlority and the respective employee’s salary. The
Company records an obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that increase this
entitiement. The obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation.

When the Company expects some or all of a provision Lo be 1eimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a soparate aseet, but only when
the reimbursement is virtually certain.

The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss, net of any reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of
money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. The
unwinding of discount is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as a finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources would be required to settle the
obligation, the provision is reversed.

Financial instrumen
A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset for one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument for another entity.

Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
-Debt instruments at amortised cost

-Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

-Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
-Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s Balance Sheet)
when:

(i) The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset has expired, or

(iiy The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Financial Liabilitles

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

Al financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, In the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs. The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, security deposits received etc.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:
-Financial liabilities at amortised cost

-Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liabllity and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently.enforceable legal
right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an Intention to settle on net basls i.e., realize the assets“an 35,5&1
simultaneously. /Qk N
R
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m) Impairment of financial assets

n

-—

o)

p)

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on
the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance for trade receivables. The application of simplified
approach does not require the Company to track changes in cradit risk. Rather, it to be recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime
ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition, ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (1.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest
rate.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables. The
provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade recsivables and is adjusted for forward-
looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historically observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed. ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Impalrment of non-financlal assets

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indlcation exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (CGU') is the greater of its value in use or its fair value less costs to sell. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that
cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash Inflows from continuing use that are
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (‘CGU').

An impairment loss is recognized, if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount and is recognised in
statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at end of each reporting period for any Iindications that
the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed If there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An Impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either:

(a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

(b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes Into account a market participant's abllity to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset In its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficlent data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have
occurred betwsen levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that Is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Taxes

Current Income Tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or pald to the taxation authorities. The tax
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income
(OCl) or in equity).

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulatiens-are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate. /,/Q)._‘.:” T4 ‘?\\;
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q)

r

s)

t)

u)

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that ia not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss. The carrying amount of deferred tex assets is
reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the
extent that It has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (aither in other comprehensive income or in
equity).

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exlists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Minimum Alternate Tax

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in the year is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as current tax. The Company recognises MAT
credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal Income tax during the
specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which Company recognises MAT credit as
an asset in accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternate Tax under the Income Tax
Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss and shown as "MAT Credit Entitlement". The Company
reviews the "MAT Credit Entitlement" asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Company does not have
convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period. In accordance with Ind AS 12 Company is grouping MAT credit
entitlement with Deferred Tax Assets / Liability (Net).

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes In value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash balance on hand, cash balance at banks and short-
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash
management.

Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to the shareholders of the Company by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding as at the end of reporting period.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the
dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

Contingent Liabilities and Conti n s

A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an
outflow of resources, or a present obligation whose amount cannot be estimated reliably. Contingent liabllities do not warrant provisions, but are
disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources is remote. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial
statements. However, contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the
asset and related income are recognised in the period in which the change occurs.

Seagment Reporting
In accordance with Ind AS 108, the operating segments used to present segment information are identified on the basls of internal reports used

by the Company's Management to allocate resources to the segments and assess their performance. The Board of Directors Is collectively the
Company's ‘Chief Operating Decision Maker' or ‘CODM’ within the meaning of Ind AS 108. The indicators used for internal reporting purposes
may evolve in connection with performance assessment measures put in place.

Statement of Cash Flows
Cash flows are reported using the Indirect method,where by profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash

nature,any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses assoclated with investing
or financing cash flows.The cash flows from operating,investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.The Company
considers all highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash equivalents Y —
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{All amounts are In lakh € unless otherwlse stated)

Note 3A: Capltal Work in Progress

Capltal work In progress

Breakup of Capltal Work In Progress is as follows:
Plant and equipment

Capltal Work In Pr |

As at 31 March, 2023

As At
March 31, 2023

13.35

13.36

13.38

13.36

As At
March 31, 2022

i

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Particulars Less than 1 More than 3
d 2%
year 1-2 yoars 3 years vears Total
Projects In progress 13.35 . - -
Total - - . 1
As at 31 March, 2022
Amount in CWIP for a perlod of

: Less than 1 More than 3
Particulars year 1-2 years 23 yoars ot Total
Projects in progress - il B 5 4
Projecls lemporarily suspended - " 2 z
Total ¥ 5 3 A

{This space has been left blank Intentionally}
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(All amounts are in lakh ¥ unless otherwise stated)

Note 4: Other Intangible Assets

Particulars Software Total
Gross Carrying Value (Deemed Cost)
As at April 01, 2021 5.28 5.28
Additions made during the year = -
Disposals/ adjustments during the year = -
As at March 31, 2022 5.28 5.28
Additions made during the year 0.29 0.29
Disposals/ adjustments during the year - -
As at March 31, 2023 5.57 5.57
Amortisation
As at April 01, 2021 3.06 3.06
Amortisation charge for the year 1.10 1.10
Disposals/ adjustments during the year = G
As at March 31, 2022 4.16 4.16
Amortisation charge for the year 0.97 0.97
Disposals/ adjustments during the year - -
As at March 31, 2023 5.13 5.13
Net Carrying Value
As at March 31, 2023 0.44 0.44
As at March 31, 2022 1.12 1.12

[This space has been left blank intentionally]
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{All amounts are In lakh ¥ unless otherwlse stated)

As At As At
Note 5: Investments March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Investments measured at cost
In Equity share of Subsidary companies
Unquoted Fully Paid - Up
5,000 (March 31, 2022: 5,000) shares of Sandhar Autotech Private
Limited of FV %10 fully paid up : refer note (b) below - 0.50
Less: Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments i 0.50 :
55,000 (March 31, 2022: 5,000) shares of Sandhar Auto Electric 5.50 0.50
Technologies Private Limited of FV %10 fully paid up
Total 5.50 0.50
As At As At
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Note:
a) Aggregate Value Disclosure
Aggregate book value of quoted investments - -
Aggregate market value of quoted investments - -
Aggregate value of unquoted investments 5.50 1.00
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of unquoted investments - 0.50
Aggregate value of unquoted investments (net of impairment) 5.50 0.50

b) Subsidiary Company being Sandhar Autotech Private Limited, has been struck-off as per section 248 of Companies Act, 2013. The
disclosure as per schedule Il! is as under:

Name of struck off [Nature of transactions with struckoff Relationshlp with the Struck off
Company Company Salancsloysigniig company, If any, to be disclosed
Sgndhar Aqtotech Provision for dimunuition in value of : Subsidiary
Private Limited investment

¢) Information about subsidiaries
(Amount in ¥ Lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Proportion (%) of equity interest

Name of Company Country of Incorporation Principal Activities
As At As At
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Sandhar Auto Electric India Manufacturing, assembling, 100% 99.98%
Technologies Private installations, commissioning, supply
Limited and trading of parts/ components of
Vehicles
Sandhar Autotech India Auto Ancilliary NA 99.98%
Private Limited (Struck
off Company)
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(All amounts are in lakh € unless olherwise stated)

Non-Current Current

As At As At As At As At
Note 6: Other Financial Assets March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Security Deposits 5.00 - 1.50 w
Bank deposit with original maturity of
more than 12 months (remaining maturity 18.75 17.58 - -
more than 12 Months)
Loan To Employees 6.04 - 3.08
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 0.07 0.07 - -

29.86 17.65 T 488 T e

a) Fixed Deposits with a carrying amount of 218.75 (March 31, 2022 : ¥17.58) represents margin money against bank guarantees issued with Custom

Authorities.
As At As At
Note 7: Non-Current Tax Assets (Net) March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Advance income-tax (Net of provision for income tax Rs .33 lakh (March 31,2022 : Nil)) 0.96 0.63

0.96 0.63

_Ee——————— 244
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(Al amounts are In lakh % unless otherwise stated)

Note 8: Income Tax
The major components of income tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 are:

For the year ended

Statement of Profit and Loss March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Tax Expenses:
a) Current tax 0.33

3.06

b) Deferred tax (34.23)

(c) Income tax adjustment for earlier year o (0.60)
Income tax benefit/(expense) reported in the Statement of Profit or Loss (33.90) 2.46
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) Section: Deferred tax related For the year ended For the year ended

to Items recognised in OCI during the year March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Deferred Tax Expenses/(Income) on Net loss/gain on remeasurements 0.49 0.69
of defined benefit plans
Net amount charged to OClI 0.49 0.69
Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liability) (Net)
Particulars As At As At
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Gross Deferred Tax Assets 364.20 413.67
Gross Deferred Tax Liabilities 130,81 146.54
Deferred Tax Assets/ (Llability) (Net) : 233.39 267.13
Movement in Deferred Tax Assets (Net)
Particulars As At Rset::egnlsetd‘:: Recognised In Other As At
April 01, 2022 o Comprehensive Income March 31 2023
Profit and Loss
Deferred tax assets relates to the following:
Provision For Compensated Absences 1.77 0.21 - 1.98
Provision For Gratuity 3.47 0.20 0.4°9 4.16
Provision For Labour Welfare Fund 0.01 0.01 - 0.02
Bonus Payable 0.18 0.82 B 1.00
Unabsorbed Depreciation And Business Losses 408.24 (51.20) - 357.04
Others 0.00 - - 0.00
Deferred tax llability relates to the following: - - =
Property, Plant & Equipment And Intangible Assets (146.54) 15.73 - (130.81)
Others = = - -
Total 267.13 (34.23) 0.49 233.39
Movement in Deferred Tax Assets (Net)
Particulars As At Rset‘:t’r:t:tdgf“ Recognised In Other As At
April 01, 2021 Profit and Loss Comprehenslve Income March 31, 2022
Deferred tax assets relates to the following:
Provision for compensated absences 2.00 (0.23) - 1.77
Provision for gratuity 0.92 1.86 0.69 3.47
Provision For Labour Welfare Fund 0.01 . 0.01
Bonus Payable 0.18 - 0.18
Unabsorbed depreciation and business losses 405.38 2.86 - 408.24
Others 0.27 (0.27) - 0.00
Deferred tax liability relates to the following:
Property, plant & equipment and Intangible asset (145.19) - (146.54)
Others ,m
Total 263.38 267.13

085~ o\
=
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(All amounts are In lakh ¥ unless otherwise stated)

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's Domestic tax rate for March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Accounting profit/(loss) before tax 122.08 (356.17)
Applioable tax rate * 25.17% 26.00%
Expected tax expense [A] 30.72 (92.61)
Lapsed unused carry forward losses for two assessment years - 90.53
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years = 0.60

Others- (Including change in tax rate adjustment) (65.20) (0.98)
Total adjustments [B] (65.28) 90.16

Actual tax expense [C=A+B] (34.56) (2.46)
Total tax incidence (34.56) 2.46
Tax expense recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss [D] (34.56) 2.46

The applicable tax rate is the rate applicable to domestic Company — March 31, 2023 : 26.00% (March 31, 2022 : 26.00%)

* During the current year, management has decided to adopt tax option under section 115BAA of Income Tax Act 1961, accordingly applicable
tax rate has changed.

& NEy pELHI) 2
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(All amounts are in lakh ¥ unless otherwise stated)

As At

Note 8: Inventories

March 31, 2023

Raw Materials
Finished Goods
Stores & Spares

478.33
265.48
0.31

744.12
2) For mode of valuation Refer Accounting Policy on Inventory Valuation in Note 2.1

As At

Note 10: Trade Receivables

March 31, 2023

Considered Good - Unsecured
Credit Impaired - Unsecured

513.44

513.44
a) Amount includes dues from related parties (refer note 30)

b) Trade Receivables ageing schedule as on March 31, 2023

As At
March 31, 2022

350.19
281.19

631.38

As At
March 31, 2022

439.48

439.48

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Total

Less than 6 months 6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years
Particulars

More than
3 years

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables —

considered good 513.42

0.02 - "

" 513.44

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables —
which have significant increase in - - -
credit risk -

(iii) Undisputed Trade receivables —
credit impaired -

(iv) Disputed Trade receivables -
considered good

(v) Disputed Trade receivables ~
which have significant increase in

(vi) Disputed Trade receivables —
credit impaired

Less: Allowances for expected credit
loss

Net Trade receivables

513.44

Trade Receivables ageing schedule as on March 31, 2022

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Total

Less than 6 months 6 months -1 year 1-2 yoars | 2-3 years
Particulars

More than
3 years

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables —

considered good 439.48

- 439.48

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables —
which have significant increase in - . =
credit risk S

(iii) Undisputed Trade receivables —
credit impaired -

(iv) Disputed Trade receivables —
considered good =

(v) Disputed Trade receivables —
which have significant increase in E

{vi) Disputed Trade receivables -
credit impaired -

Less: Allowances for expected credit
loss

Net Trade receivables e

f(.:‘ o~ ~&
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(All amounts are in lakh ¥ unless otherwlse stated)

Note 11: Cash and Cash Equivalents

Balances With Banks
- Current Accounts
Cash on Hand

As At As At
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Note 11.1 : Bank Balance Other Than Cash and Cash
Equivalents

Bank deposits having remaining maturity of more than 12
months

Amount disclosed under "Other Financial Assets" (Refer
note 6)

Note 12: Other Assets

(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)

Advances to Vendors

Balances With Government Authorities (Considered Good)

Balances With Government Authorities (Considered Doubtful)
Less: Provision for doubtul balances

Prepaid Expenses

Advance To Employees

Other Recoverable

66.44 47.91
86.44 47.91
Non Current Current
As At As At As At As At
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
18.75 17.58
18.75 17.58 - =
(18.75) (17.58) - B
Non Current Current
As At As At As At As At
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
. 5 12.54 7.24
- " 458.36 494,98
= - 14.61 -
¢ . (14.61) -
= = 4.24 3.77
u = 0.58 0.10
- - - 82.95
5 - 475.72 589.04

[This space has been left blank intentionally]




Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited

(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)
Standalone Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are in lakh ¥ unless otherwise stated)

Note 13: Equity Share Capital As At As At
March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
Authorised
32,000,000 (Mar 31, 2022 : 32,000,000) Equity Share of ¥ 10 each* 3,200.00 3,200.00
3,200.00 3,200.00
Issued, subscribed and fully pald up
30,99,68286 (Mar 31, 2022 : 30,99,6286) Equity Share of "€ 10 each* 3,099.63 3,099.63
3,099.63 3,099.63
' a) Reconciliation of authorised, issued and subscribed share capital :
i) Reconciliation of authorised share capltal at the beginning of the year and at the end of year
Particulars No of shares*® Amount
Balance as at Aprll 01, 2021 32,000,000 3,200.00
Changes during the year - -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 32,000,000 3,200.00
Changes during the year z -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 32,000,000 3,200.00
ii) Reconciliation of issued and subscribed share capital at the beginning and at the end of year
Particulars No of shares” Amount
Balance as at April 01, 2021 30,996,286 3,099.63
Issued during the year * -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 30,996,286 3,099.63
Issued during the year - 3
Balance as at March 31, 2023 30,996!288 3,099.63
b) Terms/Rights attached to the equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥10 per share. Each holder of Equity shares is entitled to
one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining
assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity
shares held by the shareholders. During current year ended March 31,2023, no dividend has been declared or paid.
c) Number of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% Shares in the Company

Particulars As At As At
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
No of shares* % Holding No of shares* % Holding
Sandhar Technologies Limited 30,996,285 100.00% 30,996,285 100.00%
Daewha Fuel Pump Ind. Limited ** - 0.00% B 0.00%

*{ Equity Share is held by Shri Jayant Davar and number of shares are given in absolute numbers.
* Equity Shares were transferred by Daewha Fuel Pump Ind. Limited , ref sub-note (e).

d) Details of shares held by promoters
As at March 31, 2023

No. of shares at Change during the No. of shares at o
i Promoter Name the beginning of year (refer note ‘e’  the end of the % of Total Shares richanpelduring
No. the year
the year below) vear
1 Sandhar Technologies Limited 30,996,285 - 30,996,285 99.99% 0.00%
Equity shares of 10 each fully paid
3 8hri Jayant Davar 1 - 1 0.01% 0.00%

Equity shares of 10 each fully paid
P ATt N

Total

30,996,286 = 5 e o <k 100, 0.00%




Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited

(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)
Standalone Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are In lakh ¥ unless otherwlise stated)

As at March 31, 2022

s No. of shares at Change during the No. of shares at % ch
No Promoter Name the beginning of 9 9 theend ofthe % of Total Shares  ’° change during
b the year year year the year
1 Sandhar Technologies Limited 16,173,143 14,823,142 30,996,285 99.99% 47.81%
Equity shares of 210 each fully paid
2 Daewha Fuel Pump Ind. Limited 14,823,143 (14,823,143) - 0.00% 47.82%
Equity shares of €10 each fully paid
3 Shri Jayant Davar - 1 1 0.01% 0.01%
Equity shares of 210 each fully paid
Total 30,996,286 - 30,996,286 100.00% 95.64%

* Number of Shares are given in absolute humbers.

e) As per Share Purchase Agreement (SPA) executed on Decmebr 06,2021, the Joint Venture (JV) parties i.e., Sandhar Technologies
Limited(STL) and Daewha Fuel Pump Ind. Limited (DFPL) entered into mutual agreement pursuant to which STL has agreed to
acquire 1,48,23,143 equity shares held by DFPL constituting 47.82% of share capital of Company for a lumpsum consideration as
agreed in the SPA.

In effect of above, all the terms, conditions and obligations has set out in original JV Agreement between JV parties stands terminated
and shareholding of the Company to the extent of 99.89% of the total share capital Is held by STL.

['This space has been left blank intentionally]



Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited

(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)
Standalone Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are in lakh ¥ unless otherwlse stated)

As At As At
Note 14: Other Equity March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Retained Earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year (1,164.84) (809.16)
Add: Proflt / (Loss) for the year as per statement of Profit and Loss 86.11 355.68
Balance at the end of the year (1,078.73) (1,164.84)

a) For Movement during the period in Other Equity, refer “Statement of Change in Equity”.

b) Nature and purpose of other reserves
Retained Earnings: All the profits or losses made by the Company are transferred to retained earnings from Statement of

Profit and Loss.

———
TA& N
o/

&z(\*\ i
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Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited

(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)
Standalone Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Al amounts are in lakh € unless otherwise stated)

Note 15: Provisions

Provision for Employee Benefits (Refer Note 34)
- Compensated Absenses

- Gratuity

Note 16: Trade Payables

* Outstanding Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises
- Outstanding Dues To Parties Other Than Micro And Small Enterprises

Non Current

As At As At
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
7.39 6.29
16.04 10.28
23.43 16.57

Current

As At As At
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
0.48 0.53
0.48 0.42
| 0.96 0.95

As At As At
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
206.91 224.11
1,145.60 1,374.56
1,352.51 1,598.67

a) Trade Payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settied on 90-day terms except for SME's (if any) which are settled within 45 days.
b) Amount Includes dues to related parties (refer note 28)
¢) The company's exposure to market and liquidity risk related to trade payables is disclosed in note 34.
d) As per Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013 and as certified by the Management, the amount due to Micro & Small enterprises as defined in Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 is as under:

i) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting

year.

ii) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed
day during each accounting year.
iii) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid but beyond
the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year.

v) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure

under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

203.71

1.31
1.89

224.11

Disclosure of payable to vendors as defined under the "Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006" is based on the information available with the
Company regarding the status of registration of such vendors under the said Act and as per the intimation received from them on requests made by the Company.
There are no overdue principal amounts / interest payable amounts for delayed payments to such vendors at the Balance Sheet date.

e) The amount does not include any amount due to be transferred to Investor Protection and Education fund.

Trade Payables ageing schedule as on March 31, 2023

Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Particulars Not due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Unbilled
years dues
(iy MSME 151.88 55.02 = - - 3 206.91
(ii) Others 418.56 706.71 0.076 11.66 0.75 7.84 1,145.60
(iii) Disputed dues - - - E - - -
— MSME
(iv) Disputed dues = . I > =
— Others
Trade Payables ageing schedule as on March 31, 2022
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Particulars Not due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Unbilled
vears dues
(i) MSME - 224.11 - 5 - B 22411
(i} Others - 1,360.70 11.12 - - 274 1.374.56

(iit) Disputed dues
— MSME

(iv) Disputed dues
— Others




Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited
(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)
Standalone Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are in lakh € unless otherwise stated)

. . . As At As At
Note 17: Other Current Financial Liabilities March 31, 2023 March 31. 2022
Security deposits payable 25.00 =
Creditors for capital goods 3.74 -
28.74 -
As At As At
Note 18: Other Current Liabilities March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Statutory dues 7.68 129.10
25.96 0.69

Advance from customers

129.79

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)
Standalone Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

{All amounts are in lakh ¥ unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended

Note 19: Revenue From Operatlions
Sale of Product

Other Operating Revenues
Sale of Scrap

) Performance Obligation

March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

6,062.04 1,434.52
3.26 1.7
6.065.29 1.435.69

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of products to the customers.

During the year, the Company has not entered into long term contracts with customers and accordingly discisoure of unsatisfied or
femaining performance obligation (which is affected by several factors like changes in scope of contracts, periodic revalidations, adjustment
for revenue that has not been materialized, tax laws etc.) is not applicable to the Company.

b) Disaggregation of Revenue: The table below presents disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers on the basis of
geographical spread of the operations of the Company. These revenues are revenues which have been recognised at point In time. The
Company believes that this disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount of revenues and cash flows are affected by market and

other economic factors:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

Revenue by geography March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
- Within India 6,062.04 1,423.40
- Outside India - 11.12
6,062.04 1,434.52

For the year ended For the year ended

Revenue customer wise March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
- Related party 181.26 646.85
- Non-related party 5,880.78 787.67
6,062.04 1,434.62

c¢) Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities:

Ind AS 115 requires disclosure of ‘revenue recognised in the reporting period that was included in the contract liability balance at the
beginning of the period’ and ‘revenue recognised in the reporting period from performance obligations satisfied (or partially satisfied) in

previous period. Same has been disclosed as below:

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening balance of contract liabilities 0.69 60.44
Amount of revenue recognised against opening contract liabilities (0.69) (60.44)
Addition in balance of contract liabilities for current year 25.96 0.69
Closing balance of contract liabilities 25.96 0.69

d) Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers
Contract assets related to sale of goods

Contract liabllities related to sale of goods
- Advance from customers

e) Reconciliation of Revenue from operations with contracted price

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

25.96

-

0.69

25.96

0.69

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Contracted Price 6,062.04 1,518.98
Less: Discounts and Other Schemes - (84.46)
6,062.04 1,434.52

f) Trade Receivables and Contract Balances
For Trade Receivables, refer Note No. 10.

Further, the Company has no contracts where the period between the transfer of the prom

payment terms by the customer exceeds one year. In light of above;

- it does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money, and

- there is no unbilled revenue as at March 31, 2023.




Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited
(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)

Standalone Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are in lakh ¥ unless otherwise stated)

Note 20: Other Income

Interest income on
- Bank deposits
Miscellaneous Income

Note 21: Cost of Materials Consumed

1nventories at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases
Less: Inventory at the end of the year

Note 22: Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Work-in-

Progress

Opening stock
Finished goods

Closing stock
Finished goods

Note 23: Employee Benefits Expenses

Salaries, Wages And Bonus

Contribution To Provident And Other Funds (Refer Note 33)
Gratuity Expense (Refer Note 33)

Compensated Absences (Refer Note 33)

Staff Welfare Expenses

Note 24: Finance Cost

Interest Cost
- Interest on Loans
- Interest on Custom Duty (EPCG)
- Interest to Others

Note 25: Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

Depreciation Of Property, Plant And Equipment
Amortisation Of Intangible Assets

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

1.31 1.22
0.58 0.11
1.89 1.33

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

350.19 26.28
5,361.08 1,878.43
(478.33) (350.19)
5,252.94 1.5654.53

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

281.19 16.54
281.19 16.54
265.48 281.19
265.48 281.19

16.71 (264.66)

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

151.76 52.37
12.43 2.92
3.92 2.08
2.44 7.81
13.05 1.16
183.60 66.34

192005

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

: 13.71
0.87 41.95
1.31 1.86

— 218 67.62_

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

177.24
1.10




Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited
(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)

Standalone Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts aro In lakh ¥ unless othorwlse statod)

Note 26: Other Expenses

Packing Material Consumed
Stores & Spares Consumed
Power & Fuel
Advertising and business promotion
Repairs & Maintenance - Plant And Machinery
- Others
Irrecoverable debts/ advances written off
Contract service charges
Rent & Hire Charges
Rates & Taxes -
Provision for doubtful balances
Security Service Charges
Insurance
Travelling & Conveyance
Legal & Professional Fees
Payment To Auditors (Refer Note 'a' below)
Loss On Foreign Exchange Fluctuations
Loss on sale of fixed assets (net)
Investment in Subsidiary written off :
Value of Investment
Less: Provision for diminution in investment
Bank Charges
Freight and Forwarding
CWIP written off
Miscellaneous Expenses

a) Details of payment made to auditors is as follows:

As auditor:
Statutory audit
Tax Audit
Other services

Note 27: Earnings Per Share

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

33.16 8.77
2.15 1.00
8.75 6.26
4.99 .
5.01 1.69

12.59 6.41
0.96 -

76.84 -

51.98 13.24
0.36 25.71

14.61 -

12.88 12.72
4.69 5.67

31.27 1.36

20.89 53.66
1.65 1.50

- 0.01

24.08 -

0.50
(0.50) . -
0.19 0.19
1.72 1.89
- 59.16
11.76 1.38
320.44 200.61

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

0.90 0.756
0.40 0.50
0.25 0.26
1.58 1.50
e iy

Earning per share (EPS) is determined based on the net profit attributable to the shareholder before other comprehensive Income. Basic
earning per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period/year whereas Diluted
Earning per share is computed using the weighted average number of common and dilutive equivalent shares except for the case where the

result becomes anti-dilutive.

(Loss)/profit attributables to the equity holders
Number of equity shares

Weighted average number of shares used in basic earnings per share
Weighted average number of shares used in diluted earnings per share
Basic earnings per share (in %) (face value Z 10 per share)

Diluted earnings per share (in ) (face value % 10 per share)

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

87.52
30,996,286
30,996,286
30,996,286

(353.71)
30,996,286
30,996,286
30,996,286
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Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited
(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)

Standalone Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in lakh Z unless otherwise stated)

Note 31: Employee Benefits

1) Defined Contribution Plans

The Company makes contribution towards Employees Provident Fund and Employee’s State Insurance scheme. Under the rules of these schemes,
the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs. The Company during the year recognised the following amount in the
Statement of profit and loss account under company's contribution to defined contribution plan.

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund & Other Funds* 12.10 2.86
Employer’s Contribution to Employee State Insurance 0.33 0.06

* The contribution payable to these schemes by the Company are at the rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

11) Defined Benefit Plans

In accordance with Ind AS 19 “Employee benefits”, an actuarial valuation on the basis of “Projected Unit Credit Method” was carried out, through
which the Company is able to determine the present value of obligations. “Projected Unit Credit Method” recognizes each period of service as giving
rise to additional unit of employees benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to built up the final obligation. The method is used in
following cases :-

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan for its employees. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the
act, employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length
of service and salary at retirement age. The Company makes provision of such gratuity asset or liability in the books of accounts on the basis of
acturlal valuvation as per the projected unit credit method in accordance with Ind As 19.

Movement of defined benefit obligation :
The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the year are as follows:

Gratuity
(Unfunded)
Present value of obligation
April 01, 2022 10.71
Current service cost 3.14
Interest expense/ (income) 0.77
Total amount recognised in profit or loss year ended March 31,2023 3.92
Remeasurements
Loss due to change in financial assumptions 1.82
Loss/(Gain) due to experience 0.08
Gain due to change in demographic assumptions -
Total amount recognised in OCI 1.90
Benefits Paid -
As at March 31, 2023 16.52
Present value of obligation
April 01, 2021 5.97
Current service cost 1.67
Interest expense/ (income) 0.41
Total amount recognised in profit or loss ended March 31,2022 2.08
Remeasurements
Gain due to change in financial assumptions (0.64)
Loss due to experience 3.29
Gain due to change in demographic assumptions -
Total amount recognised in OCI 2.66
Benefits Paid -
As at March 31, 2022 10.71
d) Net Defined Benefit Cost/(Income) Included in the Statement of Profit & Loss
Gratuity
(Unfunded)
2022-23 2021-22
i) Service Cost 3.14 1.67
0.77 0.41

i) Interest Cost

iii) Remeasurements
3.92 2.08




Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited
(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)

Standalone Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in lakh ¥ unless otherwise stated)

Gratuit
€) Amount included on account of measurement in Gratuity Valuation - OCI (Unfunde%iL
2022-23 2021-22
Other Comprehensive income (OCl) 1.90 2.66
f) Actuarial Assumptions
The significant acturial assumptions were as follows :
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Discount rate 7.38% 7.22%
Salary growth rate 6.00% 5.00%
Mortality Indian assured lives mortality Indian assured lives mortality
(2012-14) (modified) Ultimate  (2012-14) (modified) Uitimate
Withdrawal rate
Upto 30 Years 10.00% 10.00%
From 31 to 44 years 3.00% 3.00%
Above 44 years 1.00% 1.00%

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors,
such as supply and demand in the employment market.

g) Sensitivity analysis
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2023 is as shown below:

Change in assumption Impact on defined beneflt obligation
Increase by Decrease by
March 31, March March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2023 31, 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Gratuity
Discount rate 0.50%  0.50% (1.12) (0.71) 1.23 0.80
Salary growth rate 0.50%  0.50% 1.24 0.78 (1.14) (0.73)

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of
reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting year.

h) Defined benefit liability

The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted gratuity is as follows : As At As At
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Less than a year 0.48 0.42
Between 1-2 years 0.42 0.30
Between 2-3 years 0.41 0.29
Between 3-4 years 0.40 0.29
Between 4-5 years 0.38 0.25
Beyond 5 years 14.42 9.16
16.52 10.70

Total

111) Other Long Term Benefits :

The Company operates compensated absences plan wherein every employee is entitled to the benefit equivalent to 26 days leave salary for every
completed year of service subject to maximum 60 accumulations of leaves. The salary for calculation of earned leave is last drawn salary. The
same is payable during the service, early retirement,withdrawal of scheme, resignation by employee and upon death of employee. Expenses for long
term compensated absences amount to ¥ 2.44 Lakh (March 31,2022 7.81 Lakh)

[This space has been left blank intentionally]
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Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited

(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)
Standalone Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are in lakh ¥ unless otherwise stated)

Note 33: Fair Value Hierarchy

This section explaines the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are:

a) recognised and measured at fair value, and

b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the standalone financial statements.

To provide an indication about the raliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the
three levels prescribed under Ind AS 113. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table.

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including thelr levels of In the fair value

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at March 31, 2023:
Fair value measurement using

, f'::)?tli:g:;nr:::gt Quoted prices in Significant Significant

active markets observable inputs unobservable inputs
{Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Financlal Assets measured at Amortised Cost

Bank deposits having remaining maturity of more than 12 18.75 ) ) J

months '

Interest accrued on fixed deposits 0.07 - B -

Trade receivables 513.44 - - -

Investment in wholly owned subsidary 5.50 - - -

Cash and cash equivalents 66.44 - - -

Total 604.20 - - -

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for liabilltles as at March 31, 2023:
Fair value measurement using

:a’?’t'i"g d";““""t Quoted prices In  Signlficant Significant

mortised Amount  5ctive markets observable Inputs unobservable inputs
{Level 1) (Level 2) {Level 3)

Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost

Trade payables 1,352.51 - - #

Other financial liabilities 28.74 - = .

Total 1,381.25 - - -

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at March 31, 2022:
Fair value measurement using

: arryiingdA;nountlt Quoted prices in Significant Signiflcant
WertEEEiSmerh active markets observable inputs unobservable inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost
Bank deposits having remaining maturity of more than 12

17.58 - - -
months
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 0.07 = 5 -
Trade receivables 439.48 - - -
Investment in wholly owned subsidary 0.50 . = :
Cash and cash equivalents 47.91 - - -
Total 505.54 - . F

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for liabilltles as at March 31, 2022:
Fair value measurement using

Carrying Amount/

i A Quoted prices in Significant Significant
TR A active markets observable Inputs unobservable inputs
{Level 1) {Level 2) {Level 3)

Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost

Trade payables 1,598.67 - - 1,598.67
Other financial liabilities .
Total 1.598.67 - - 1.598.67




Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited

(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)
Standalone Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are In lakh ¥ unless otherwlise stated)

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The finance and accounts team that has overall
responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements and reports directly to the board of directors. The team regularly reviews
significant unabservahle inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information, such as quotes from brokers or as available in public domain, is
used to measure fair values, then the team assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that these valuations meet
the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified. Significant valuation issues are
reported to the Company's board ot directors.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.

“Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active mariets for identical asscts or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices)

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

There have been no transfers in either direction for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

The carrying amounts of short-term trade and other receivables, trade payables, cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances are considered
to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.

For other financial liabilities/ assets that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.

[This space has been left blank intentionally]



Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited

(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daewha Automotlve Systems Private Limited)
Standalone Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are In lakh ¥ unless otherwise stated)

Note 34: Financial Risk Management Objectives And Policies

The Company'’s principal financial liabilites comprise trade and other payables and other financial liabilities. The main purpose of these
financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations. The Company's principal
financial assets include trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and other financlal assets.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management oversees the management of these
risks. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

{I) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market
risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk.

a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The borrowings from Related party and other other borrowings are Nil as at reporting date, there is no volatility involved in respect of
interest payout and hence interest rate sensitivity is not given.

b) Foreign currency risk

Foreign Currency Risk is the risk that the Fair Value or Future Cash Flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign currency
rates. Exposures can arise on account of the various assets and liabilities which are denominated in currencies other than Indian Rupee. The
Company is not exposed to foreign currency risk as on March 31, 2023.

(1) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss.
The Company is exposed to credit risk from their operating activities, primarily trade receivables, which has outstanding balance of ¥513.44 as
at March 31, 2023(March 31, 2022: ¥ 439.48). The customer credit risk is managed by Company as per established policy, procedures and
control relating to customer credit risk management.

- Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on an extensive credit rating. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored.

- Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the
Company's policy.

1ll) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that Company will encounter in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. The approach of Company to manage liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that these will have
sufficient liquidity to meet their respective liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risk damage to their reputation.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

Less than 1 vear 1 to 5 years > 5 years Total

As at March 31, 2023
Trade payables 1,352.51 - - 1,3562.51
Other financial liabilities 28.74 - - 28.74
1,381.25 - - 1,381.25

As at March 31, 2022
Trade payables 1,587.55 11.12 - 1,598.67

Dther financial liabilities

1,587.65 & 1,698.67

[This space has been left blank intentionally]
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(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)

Standalone Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
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Note 36: Capital Management

i) For the purpose of Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves

attributable to the equity holders of the Company.

i) The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the shareholder value and also ensure ability
to continue as a going concern. In order to maintain the optimal balance of Debt and Capital, the Company manages its

capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions.

iii) The Company monitors Capital & Debt balance using Capital Gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus

net debt:
Particulars As At As At
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Trade Payables 1,352.51 1,598.67
Other Financial Liabilities 28.74 -
Other Current Liabilities 33.64 129.79
Less: Cash and Cash Equivalents (Refer note 11) (66.44) (47.91)
Adjusted Net Debt (A) 1,348.45 1,680.55
Equity Share Capital (Refer note 13) 3,099.63 3,099.63
Other Equity (Refer note 14) (1,078.73) (1,164.84)
Total Capital (B) 2,020.90 1,934.79
Net Debt and Capital (C=A+B) 3,369.35 3,615.34
Gearing Ratio [D=A/(C)] 40.02% 46.48%

a) No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31,

2023 and the year ended March 31, 2022.

[This space has been left blank intentionally]
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(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)
Standalone Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are in lakh ¥ unless otherwise stated)

Note 37:

No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on
behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries). The Company has not received any fund from any party(s) (Funding Party) with
the understanding that the Company shall whether, direclty or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or
on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries

Note 38: Other Statutory Information

(a) Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency

(b) Benami Propetty held under Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder

(¢) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies except charges mentioned in note 21(ii) of the
standalone financial statements.

(d) Relating to borrowed funds:

i) Wilful defaulter

ii) Utilisation of borrowed funds & share premium

iii) Borrowings obtained on the basis of security of current assets
iv) Discrepancy in utilisation of borrowings

Note 39: In view of the management, the current assets have a value on realization in the ordinary course of business at least
equal to the amount at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023.

Note 40: Figures have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs except otherwise stated.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited (Formerly Known as Sandhar
Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)

(Ashish Vatsa) (Naveen Kumar)
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

e

(Yatendra Singh Chauhan)
Director
DIN: 03555013

(Sakshi Goyal)
Company Secretary
Membership No. 63137




B.R. GUPTA & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

K-55, CConnaught Circus, New Delhi-110001

Independent Auditor’s Report

To The Members of Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Sandhar Automotive Systems
Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its Subsidiary (Holding
Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”) which comprise the Consolidated
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Incore), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and notes to the consolidated financial
statement, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and other
information in respect of the Subsidiary, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (‘Ind AS") and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at
March 31, 2023, of the consolidated Profit (including other comprehensive income), consolidated
changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAIl) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on consolidated financial statements.

Information other than Censolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Reports thereon

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board's Report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information_is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material mis tatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this, 4 gardl
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Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial pOS|t|on consolidated financial performance, consolidated total comprehensive
income ,consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the
Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are
responsible for maintenance of the adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by
the directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the Companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the respective companies to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for
overseeing their financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Companies included in the Group has
adequate internal financial controls with reference to the consolidated financial statements in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertalnty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s rgpﬁm, N
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such dlsclosu;es~
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtamed_ { p




the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial
statements of such entlties included In the consolidated financlal statements of which we are the
independent auditors.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company of which we are the
independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant

eth

ical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1

With respect to the matters specified in the paragraph 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor's
Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"/’"CARQ"), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of
sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, to be included in the Auditor's report, according to the
information and explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us for the
Holding and Subsidiary Companies which have been included in the consolidated financial
statements of the Company & to which reporting under CARO is applicable, we report that there are
no qualifications or adverse remarks in those CARO reports.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid

consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books and reports of statutory auditors of Subsidiary Company.

b) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other

Comprehensive Income), Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015, as
amended.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken
on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and report of the statutory auditor of the
Subsidiary Company, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

e) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial

f)

statements of the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure A”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Group does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

ii. The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.
There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investéf E,liub;am&! and

Protection Fund by the Holding Company and subsidiary company. {
\ ’.




iv.

b)

c)

d)

The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiary which are Companies
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have
represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the Note 37 to the
accounts, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company or its Subsidiary to or in any other person or
entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on hehalf of the Company or
its Subsidiary (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiary which are Companies
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have
represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the Note 37 to the
accounts, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
received by the Company or its Subsidiary from any person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Company or its Subsidiary shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

Based on such audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) & (b)
above, contain any material mis-statement.

As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the
Company and its subsidiary only w.e.f. April 1, 2023, accordingly reporting under Rule 11(g)
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year
ended March 31, 2023.

The Group has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ report under Section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Group has not paid
remuneration to its directors during the current financial year. Accordingly, the provisions of and limit
laid down under section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable.

For B.R. Gupta & Co.

Chartered Accountants,

eepak Agarwal)
Partner

Membership Number 073696

UDIN: 92012 694 BLIWVKT 5472

Place of Signature: New Delhi

Date

- & MAY 2023



Annexure 'A' to the Independent Auditors' Report of even date on the Consolidated
Ind AS Financial Statement of Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Sandhar Automotive
Systems Private Limited (“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary (together referred to as “the
Group") as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023, we have audited the internal financial controls
of the Holding Company and its Subsidiary, which are companies covered under the Act and
incorporated in India, as at that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary, which are incorporated
in India and covered under the Act, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
respective companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary, which are incorporated in India, based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by
ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained in terms of
report of statutory auditor of subsidiary company is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary, as aforesaid.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements
A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with auth nsaf.‘ems of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurapge regardi

prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the comp ny's asge
that could have a material effect on the financial statements. .U.”) "




Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree ot compliance with the policles or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

[n our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary, which are companies incorporated in India,
have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the ICAI.

For B.R. Gupta & Co.
Chartered Accountants,
Firm Registration Number 008352N
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Membership Number 073696 a2

UDIN: 2 20072 696 BlyWVKT S4T2
Place of Signature: New Delhi

Date: _ 4 MaY 2003



Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited

(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

(All amounts are in lakh % unless otherwise stated)

As At As At
Particulars Note No. March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Assets
Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 1,372.38 1,685.92
(b) Capital work-in-progress 4 13.36 .
(c) Other Intangible Assets 5 0.44 1.12
(d) Financial Assets
(i) Other Financial Assets 6 29.86 17.65
(e) Deferred Tax Assets (net) 8 233.39 267.13
(f) Non-Current Tax Assets (Net) 7 0.96 0.63
(g) Other Non-Current Assets 12 - -
Total Non-Current Assets 1,650.38 1,972.45
“Current Assets
(a) Inventories 9 744,12 631.38
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade Recelvables 10 513.44 439.40
(if) Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 71.34 48.41
(iii) Bank Balances other than (ii) above - -
(iv) Other Financial Assets 6 4.58 -
(c) Other Current Assets 12 475.72 589.04
Total Current Assets 1,809.20 1,708.23
Total Assets 3,459.58 3,680.68
Equity And Liabilities
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 13 3,099.63 3,099.63
(b) Other Equity 14 (1,079.62) (1,165.24)
Total Equity 2,020.01 1,934.39
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Provisions 15 23.43 16.57
Total Non-Current Liabilities 23.43 16.57
Current Liabllities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade payables 16
(A) Total outstanding Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises
enterprises; and 206.91 22412
(B) Total Outstanding Dues to other than Micro and Small
Enterprises 1,145.90 1,374.86
(i) Other Financial Liabilities 17 28.74 -
(b) Other Current Liabilities 18 33.63 129.79
(c) Provisions 15 0.96 0.95
Total Current Liabillties 1,416.14 1,729.72
Total Equity And Liabllities 3,459.58 3,680.68
Summary of significant accounting policles 2

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements

As per our Report of even date attached

For B.R. Gupta & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Number 008352N

(Déepak Agarwal)
Partner

Place of Signature: New Delhi

Pates - | MAY 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited
(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daewha Automotive

" (Ashish Vatsa)

Chief Executive Offjcer

Systems Private Limited)

{Naveery Kumar)

(Ajay Kumar Ra
Director
DIN: 09380468

Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary
Membership No. 63137



Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited

(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are In lakh ¥ unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars Note No. March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
I Revenue from Operations 19 6,065.29 1,435.69
Il Other Income 20 1.89 1.33
Il Total Income (I+I) 6,067.18 1,437.02
IV Expenses
(a) Cost of Materials Conaumed 21 5,252.94 1,854.53
(b) Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Work in Progress 22 15.71 (264.65)
(c) Employee Benefits Cxpense 23 183.60 66.34
(d) Finance Costs 24 2.18 57.52
(e) Depreciation And Amortisation Expense 25 170.23 178.34
(f) Other Expenses 26 320.93 201.01
Total expenses 5,945.59 1,793.09
V  Profit/ (loss) before exceptional items and tax (lll-1V) 121.59 (366.07)
VI Exceptional Items = 0.50
VIl Profit/(Loss) before tax 121.69 (356.57)
VIl Tax expense: 8
(a) Current tax 0.33 .
(b) Deferred tax 34.23 (3.06)
(c) Income tax adjustment for earller year - 0.60
Total tax expense/(benefit) 34.56 (2.46)
IX Profit/(Loss) for the year 87.03 (354.11)
X Other Comprehensive Income
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss
(a) Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans (1.90) (2.66)
(i) Income tax on items that will not be reclassified subsequently to Profit & Loss 0.49 0.69
Other Comprehensive Gain/(L.oss) (1.41) (1.97)
Xl Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year (IX+X) 85.62 (356.08)
XIl Earnings/(loss) Per Share (face value ¥ 10 per share) 27
1) Basic (amount in ¥) 0.28 (1.14)
2) Diluted (amount in ¥) 0.28 (1.14)
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements
As per our Report of even date attached
For B.R. Gupta & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Number 00835

(Deepak Agarwal)
Partner
Membership Number 073696

Place of Signature: New Delhi

Pt | MAY 2003

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited
(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daewha Automotive
Systems Private Limited)

*  (Ashish Vatsa)

Chief Executive O!‘ﬁc:egJ

(Naveen\Kumar)
Chief Financial Officer

(Yatendra Singh Chauhan)
Director
DIN: 03555013

oy
(Sakshi Goyal)

Company Secretary
Membership No. 63137



Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited
(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are in lakh ¥ unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Cash Flow From Operating Activities

Profit/(Loss) before tax 121.59 (356.57)
Adjustments for:

Depreciation And Amortisation Expense 170.23 178.34
Finance Cost 2.18 67.62
Interest Income (1.31) (1.22)
Loss on sale of PPE 24.08 -
Operating profit/{loss) before working capital changes 316.77 (121.93)
Movement in working capital

Increase In Inventories (112.74) (583.62)
Increase In Trade Receivables (74.04) (385.94)
Increase In Other Current And Non-Current Financial Assets (16.80) (1.10)
Decrease/(Increase) In Other Current And Non-Current Assets 112.99 (166.82)
Increase/(Decrease) In Trade Payables (246.16) 1,392.67
Increase In Current And Non-Current Provisions 4.97 1.20
Increase/(Decrease) In Other Current And Non-Current Liabilites (71.16) 67.54
Cash (used in)/generated from operating activities post working capital changes (86.17) 202.00
Income tax paid (net) (0.33) (0.43)
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities (A) (86.50) 201.57
Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Purchase of Property, Plant And Equipment (21.97) 53.77

Sale of Property, Plant And Equipment 128.53 -
Increase/(Decrease) in Creditors for Capital Expenditure 3.74 (18.46)
Interest Received From Deposits 1.31 1.22
Net cash flow generated from investing activities (B) 111.61 36.53
Cash Flows From Financing Activities

Proceeds from Short Term Borrowings - (133.18)
Finance Costs Paid (2.18) (57.52)
Net cash used in financing activities (C) (2.18) (190.70)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 22.93 47.40
Cash and cash equivalents at the begining of the year 4841 1.01
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 71.34 48.41
Components of cash & Cash Equivalent
Cash on hand = =
With banks - on current account and deposits with banks 71.34 48.41

Total Cash and Cash equivalent (Note No. 12) 71.34 48.41

Summary of significanl accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements
As per our Report of even date attached
For B.R. Gupta & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Number 008352N

eepak Agarwal)
Partner

Director

DiIN: 03555013

Place of Signature: New Dethi

Date: _4 MAY 2023

(Ashish Vatsa)
Chief Executive Officer

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited (Formerly Known as
Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)

(Naveen Kumar)
Chief Financial Officer

z&.}.i\,ﬂ
(Sakshi Goyal)

Company Secretary
Membership No. 63137



Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited
(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are in lakh Z unless otherwise stated)

A Equity Share Capital Amount
For the year ended 31 March, 2023
Equity shares of 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid at 1 April, 2022 3,099.63
Chanyes duiing the yea
At March 31, 2023 3,099.63
For the year ended 31 March, 2022
Equity shares of €10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid at 1 April, 2021 3,099.63
Changes during the year -
At March 31, 2022 3,099.63

B Other equity
For the year ended March 31, 2023

Description Reserves and surplus Total

Retained Earings :

Balance as at March 31, 2022 (1,165.24) (1,165.24)
Profit for the year 87.03 87.03
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan (net of tax) (1.41) (1.41)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 {1,079.62) {1,079.62)
For the year ended March 31, 2022

Description Reserves and surplus Total

Retained Earings :

Balance as at March 31, 2021 (809.16) (809.16)
Loss for the year (354.11) (354.11)
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan (net of tax) (1.97) (1.97)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 (1,185.24) (1,765.24)

Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements
As per our Report of even date attached

For B.R. Gupta & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Number 008352N

(Deepak Agarwal)
Partner
‘Membership Number 073696

Place of Signature:New Delhi

Date: | MAY 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited
(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daewha Automotive
Systems Private Limited)

= A

(Ashish Vatsa) (Naveen Kumar)
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
(Yatendra Singh Chauhan) ( r Raghav)
Director Diréctor

DIN: 03555013
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Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited
(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)

Notes to Consolldated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are In lakh € unless otherwise stated)

Note 1: Group Overview

Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited (incorporated originally as Sandhar Daeswha Automotive Systems Private Limited on 20th January 2017)
anid ilg subsidiary (refer to sub-note ‘Principles of Consolidation’ below) together referred to as 'the Group' is domaclled In India. The companies under
the Group are incorporated under the provision of Companies Act, 2013,

The Group is primarily engaged in the business of manufacture, service, import, export, trade, promote, pack, repack, assemble, reassemble, design,
modify, buy, sell, repair and otherwise to act as wholesale dealers of all kinds of automotive fuel pumps, filters, starter motors, wiper blades, accessories,
emlsslon controlling, engine combustion and calibration units, and other ancillary automotive modules & parts, assembling, installations, commissioning,
supply, trading of parts/ components of Battery Electric Vehicles, Hydrogen Fuel Cell Vehicles, Bio Fuel based technology Vehicle and any other
Advanced Automotive Technology Vehicles and warehousing of all kinds ol components, spare parts related to the above.

The details of Subsidiary considered in these consolidated financial statements are as under:

Proportion (%) of equity Intarast

Country of
Name of Company Incorporation Princlpal Actlvities As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Sandhar Auto Electric Technologies India Manufacturing, assembling, installations, 100.00% 99.98%
Private Limited commissioning, supply and trading of parts/
components of Vehicles

Erstwhile subsidiary company being Sandhar Autotech Private Limited has been struck off as per section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 on 11.01,2023.

Note 2: Statement of Compliance:
Statement of Compliance: In accrordance with the notification issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Group has adopted Indlan Accounting
Standards (referred to as "Ind AS") notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 with effect from April 01, 2017.

Basis of Preparation: These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS as notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 read with section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant presentation requirements of the Companies Act 2013. The
financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention on accrual and going concern basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair value as required under relevant Ind AS. The financial statements are presented in ¥ and all values are
rounded to the nearest Lakhs upto two decimal places except otherwise stated.

Going Concern

The board of directors have considered the financial position of the Group as at March 31, 2023, the projected cash flows and financial performance of
the Group for at least twelve months from the date of approval of these financial statements as well as planned cost and cash improvement actions, and
believe that the plan for profitability remains on course. The board of directors have taken actions to ensure that appropriate long-term cash resources
are in place at the date of signing the accounts to fund the Group's operations.

Recent Accounting Pronouncement

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued
from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, which are as below. The
effective date for adoption of this amendment are from annual periods beginning on or after April 01, 2023:

- Amendment to Ind AS 1- Presentation of Financial Statements

- Amendment to Ind AS 8- Accounting Policies, Change in Accounting Estimates and Errors

- Amendment to Ind AS 12- Income Taxes

The group has evaluated the amendment and there will not be any impact on its financial statements.

Note 2.1 : Significant Accounting Policies
*a) Significant accounting jJudgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in
future periods.

i} Judgements:
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, the Management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

ii) Estimates and Assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertalnty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Group based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financlal statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are-gye control of the Group. Such changes are
reflected in the assumptions when they occur. Q\‘-“
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b)

c)

Recoverability of deferred taxes

In assessing the recoverability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the losses can be utilised. The ultimate realisation of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during
the periods in which the temporary differences become deductible. Management considers the projected future taxable income and tax planning
strategies in making this assessment.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The Group reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. This reassessment may result in change in
depreciation expense in future periods.

Defined benefit plans

The present value of the gratuity and leave encashment are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases
and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to
changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate.
In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds In
currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality
tables for the specific countries. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary
increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries.

Contingencies

Contingent Liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the group, including legal and other claims. By
virtue of their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur, the assessment of the
existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves exercise of significant judgements and the use of estimates regarding
outcome of future events.

Basis of Subsidiary Consolidation :

The Consolidated financial statement of the Group including of subsidiary group have been prepared in accordance with the Ind AS 110
"Consolidated financial statements", on a line-by-line basis by adding together the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses, after eliminating intra group balances and intra group transactions resulting in unrealized profits or losses. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been aligned wherever necessary to ensure consistency with policies adopted by Group including considering the materiality
impact. The assets and liabilities acquired are recognized at their carrying amounts. The identity of the reserves is preserved and they appear in
the consolidated financial statements of the group in the same form in which they appeared in financial statements of the acquired entity. The
difference of the cost to the Group of its investment in subsidiaries over its share in the equity of investee Group as at the date of acquisition of
stake is recognised in financial statements as Goodwill or Capital Reserve, as the case may be.

Subsidiary is entity controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. The financial statements of subsidiary are
included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on which control commences until the date on which control ceases.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiary is identified and presented in the consolidated Balance Sheet separately
within equity of the Group's shareholders.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiary consists of:
a. The amount of equity attributable to Non-controlling interests at the date on which investment in a subsidiary is made; and
b. The Non-controlling interests share of movements in equity since the date parent subsidiary relationship came into existence.

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented, to the extent possible, in the same format as adopted by the parent Group for its individual
financial statements.

Cur us non-current classification
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
Assets:

An asset is treated as current when it is:
a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.

b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading

c) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period,
All other assets are classified as non-current assets.

Liabilities:

A liability is current when:

(a) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

{b) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

(c) Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
(d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve mon
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
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Operating cycle: The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Group has identified normally twelve months as its operating cycle.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any. Such cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets Includes the
cost of materials and direct services, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition for their intended use and
cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met.

The present value of the expected cost for the docommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the
recognition criteria for a provision are met.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss within other income.

Depreciation: Depreciation is to be provided using the Straight Line Method as per useful life specified in schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013
except in the following cases where useful life has been estimated by the Management :-

Assets As per Schedule Il | As per Management Assessment
Motor Vehicles 8 years 6 years
Servers & Networks 6 years 3 vears
Tools 15 years 6 years

Depreciation is calculated on a pro-rata basis from the date of additions. On assets sold, discarded, etc. during the year, depreciation is provided
up to the date of sale/discard. Assets costing up to 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of acquisition. Further, the Schedule Il to the
Companies Act, 2013 requires that useful life and depreciation for significant components of an asset should be determined seperately. The
identification of significant components is matter of technical judgement and is to be decided on case to case basis; wherever applicable.

Subsequent costs: The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is to be recognised in the carrying amount of the item
of property, plant and equipment, if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Group and its cost can
be measured reliably with the carrying amount of the replaced part getting derecognised. The cost for day-to-day servicing of property, plant and
equipment to be recognised in statement of profit and loss as and when incurred.

Capital work in progress: Capital work in progress comprises the cost of fixed assets that are not ready for their intended use at the reporting
date.

Intangible Assets
Recognition and measurement

Intangible Assets with finite useful lives are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment loss, if any.
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group,

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs consists of interest and amortization of ancillary costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also
includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Foreian Currencies

Functional and presentational currency

The Group's financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (%) which is also the Group's functional currency. Functional currency is the
currency of the primary economic environment in which a Group operates and is normally the currency in which the Group primarily generates and
expends cash. All the financial information presented in ¥ except where otherwise stated.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group at the functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies
for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting
date. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are retranslated to the functional currency at
the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
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h) Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recoghized upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the
Group expects to receive in exchange for those products or services. To recognize revenues, the Group apply the following five step approach:

(1) Identify the contract with a customer

(2) identify the performance obligations in the contract

(3) determine the transaction price,

(4) allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
(5) recognize revenues when a performance obligation is satisfied.

At contract inception, the Group assesses its promise to transfer products or services to a customer fo identify separate performance ohligations.

. The Group applies judgement to determine whether each product or services promised to a customer are capable of being distinct, and are

distinct in the context of the contract, if not, the promised product or services are combined and accounted as a single performance obligation.

For performance obligations where control is transferred over time, revenues are recognized by measuring progress towards completion of the
performance obligation. The selection of the method to measure progress towards completion requires judgment and is based on the nature of the
promised products or services to be provided.

The method for recognizing revenues and costs depends on the nature of the goods sold & services rendered:

(i) Local Sales & Job Work :

Local Sales are to be recognized at the point of dispatch of goods to the customers & sales are reported net of trade discount and sales tax, and
inclusive of packing charges.

(ii) Rendering of services :

Revenue from the Installation & Commissioning services and income from shared services is to be recognised by reference to the stage of
completion. Stage of completion is measured by reference to cost incurred to date as a percentage of total estimated cost for each contract. When
the contract outcome cannot be measured reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent that the expenses incurred are eligible to be
recovered.

(iii) Other income: Interest income is recognized using the Effective Interest Rate (‘EIR') method. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset. The EIR is computed basis the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial
instrument. The calculation includes all fees, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts paid or received between parties to the
contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

Leases

Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases. The Group assesses at contract
inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee
The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.
The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-
use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made
at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets. If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the
lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-
use assets are also subject to impairment.

Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over
the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including insubstance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment
occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the

interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the

accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a

modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to ayments resultinggyxp_fﬁ;ﬁs_jgﬁa“‘r}g\a\ in an index or
underlyin AN
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Short term leases and leases of low value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to
leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Inventorles

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of raw material is determined on the basis of First-in-First-Out (FIFO)
method.

- The cost of manufactured finished goods and work-in-progress includes raw material value determined on the basis of First-in-First-Out (FIFO)
method and includes conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

- Stores & Consumables, Packing Materials, Tools & Dies are valued at lower of net realizable value or cost on the basis of First-in-First-Out
(FIFO) Method.

- Stock in Transit is valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Scrap is valued at estimated net realizable value.

k) Emplovee's Benefits

Short Term Employee Benefits: All employee benefits expected to be settled wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified
as short-term employee benefits. When an employee has rendered service to the Group during an accounting period, the Group recognises the
undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service as an expense unless another Ind AS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an asset. Benefits such as salaries, wages and short-term compensated absences,
bonus and ex-gratia etc. are recognised in statement of profit and loss in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Defined Contribution Plan

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions to a statutory authority and will have
no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme and
contributions paid/payable towards Provident Fund are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss during the period in which the
employee renders the related service.

Defined Benefit Plan

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Group has an obligation towards gratuity, a
defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. The plan provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death
while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of employment.
Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. The Group accounts for the liability for gratuity benefits payable in future based on an
independent actuarial valuation report using the projected unit credit method as at the year end.

The obligations are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rate is generally based upon the market yields
available on Government bonds at the reporting date with a term that matches that of the liabilities.

Re-measurements, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan
assets (excluding interest and if applicable), is reflected immediately in Other Comprehensive Income under the statement of profit and loss. All
other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in statement of profit and loss as employee benefit expenses. Re-measurements
recognised in Other Comprehensive Income will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss hence it is treated as part of retained earnings in
the statement of changes in equity. Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of any defined benefit plan are recognised when the
curtailment or settlement occurs. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs.

Other Long Term Employee Benefits

As per the Group's policy, eligible leaves can be accumulated by the employees and carried forward to future periods to either be utilised during
the service, or encashed. Encashment can be made during the service, on early retirement, on withdrawal of scheme, at resignation by employee
and upon death of employee. The scale of benefits is determined based on the seniority and the respective employee’s salary. The Group records
an obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that increase this entitlement. The
obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. .

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain.

The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss, net of any reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of
money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. The
unwinding of discount is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as a finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources would b quired to settle the
obligation, the provision is reversed. RN
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m) Financial instruments
A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset for one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument for another entity.

Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
-Debt instruments at amortised cost

-Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

-Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
-Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Group’s Balance Sheet) when:
(i) The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset has expired, or

(i) The Group has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) theGroup has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

Financial Liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs. The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, security deposits received etc.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:
-Financial liabilities at amortised cost

-Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability
is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right
to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on net basis i.e., realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

.n) Impairment of financial

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the
following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance for trade receivables. The application of simplified approach
does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it to be recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date, right from its initial recognition. ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate.

As a practical expedient, the Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables. The
provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-
looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historically observed default rates are updated es in the fonuard-lpoki“g estimates are
analysed. ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is reco w g[e'rnent f Profit
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The carrying amounts of the Group's non-financial assets, other than deferred tax asset
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the sfable amou § if}iai b

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (‘CGU’) is the greater of its valu e or its fair value less costs to sell. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that
cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets ('CGU').
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An impairment loss is recognized, if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount and is recognised in
statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at end of each reporting period for any indications that
the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either:

() In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

(b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the assat or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Leve!l 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Taxes

Current Income Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income
(OCl) or in equity).

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in
equity). ST
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to8g
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority,
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with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternate Tax undefthe-lncome Tax Act, 1961, the said asset is
created by way of credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss and shown as "MAT Credit Entitlement’, The Group reviews the "MAT Credit
Entitlement" asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Group does not have convincing evidence that it will pay
normal tax during the specified period. In accordance with Ind AS 12 Group is grouping MAT credit entitlement with Deferred Tax Assets / Liability
(Net).
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash balance on hand, cash balance at banks and short-
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considercd an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

Earnings Per Share (EP3)

Rasic FPS amaunts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to the shareholders of the Group by the weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding as at the end of reporting period.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the shareholders of the Group by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive
potential equity shares into equity shares.

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an
outflow of resources, or a present obligation whose amount cannot be estimated reliably. Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions, but are
disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources is remote. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial
statements. However, contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the
asset and related income are recognised in the period in which the change occurs.

Segqment Reporting

The Group has the policy of reporting the segments in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision
maker. The chief operating decision maker is considered to make strategic decisions and is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments.

Statement of Cash Flows

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method,where by profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature,any
deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing
cash flows.The cash flows from operating,investing and financing activities of the Group are segregated.The Group considers all highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash equivalents

[This space has been left blank intentionally]
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Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited
(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)
Consolidated Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are in lakh ¥ unless otherwise stated)

Note 4: Capital Work in Progress

Capital work in progress

Breakup of Capital Work in Progress is as follows:

Plant and equipment

Capital Work In Progress Aging Schedule

As at 31 March, 2023

As At
March 31, 2023

13.35

13.35

13.35

13.35

As
March 31, 2022

Amount in CWIP for a period of
Particulars Less than More than
1year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3 years Total
Projects in progress 13.35 -
Total 3 .
As at 31 March, 2022
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Particulars ekt UL 1-2 years 2-3 years LAPRE Total
1 year 3 years

Projects in progress

Projects temporarily suspended

Total

{This space has been left blank intentionally)




Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited
(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)

Consolidated Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are in lakh ¥ unless otherwise stated)

Note 5: Other Intangible Assets

[This space has been left blank intentionally]

Particulars Software Total
Gross Carrying Value (Deemed Cost)
As at April 01, 2021 5.28 5.28
Additions made during the year - -
Disposals/ adjustments during the year - -
“As at March 31, 2022 5.28 5.28
Additions made during the year 0.29 0.29
Disposals/ adjustments during the year - B
"As at March 31, 2023 5.57 5.57
Amortisation
As at April 01, 2021 3.06 3.06
Amortisation charge for the year 1.10 1.10
Disposals/ adjustments during the year = -
As at March 31, 2022 4.16 4.16
Amortisation charge for the year 0.97 0.97
Disposals/ adjustments during the year - -
As at March 31, 2023 5.13 5.13
Net Carrying Value
As at March 31, 2023 0.44 0.44
As at March 31, 2022 1.12 1.12




Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited
(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are In Jakh ¥ unless otherwlse stated)

Non-Current Current
As At As At As At As At
Note 6: Other Financial Assets March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Security Deposits 5.00 - 1.60 -
Bank deposit with original maturity of more than
12 months (remaining maturity more than 12 18.76 17.58 - -
Months)
Loan To Employees 6.04 3 3.08
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 0.07 0.07 = -
29.86 17.65 4.58 B
a) Fixed Deposits with a carrying amount of ¥18.75 (March 31, 2022 : ¥17.58) represents margin money against bank guarantees issued with
Custom Authorities.
As At A At
Note 7: Non-Current Tax Assets (Net) March 31, 2023 Mar:h 31, 2022
Advance income-tax (Net of provision for income tax Rs .33 lakh (March 31,2022 : Nil)) 0.96 0.63
0.96 0.63

[This space has been left blank intentionally]
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Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited
(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are in lakh ¥ unless otherwise stated)

Note 8: Income Tax

The major components of income tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 are:

Statement of Profit and Loss

Tax Expenses:

a) Current tax

b) Deferred tax

(c) Income tax adjustment for earlier year

Income tax benefit/(expense) reported in the Statement of Profit or Loss

Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) Section: Deferred tax related

to items recognised In OCI during the year

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

0.33 .
(34.23) 3.06

. (0.60)
(33.90) 2.46

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Deferred Tax Expenses/(Income) on Net loss/gain on 0.49 0.69
remeasurements of defined benefit plans
Net amount charged to OCI 0.49 0.69
Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liability) (Net)
Particulars As At As At
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Gross Deferred Tax Assets 364.20 413.67
Gross Deferred Tax Llabllities 130.81 146.54
Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liability) (Net) : 233.39 267.13
Movement in Deferred Tax Assels (Net)
Particulars As At R'Setc;:gnisnetdolfn Recognised In Other As At
April 01, 2022 _eme Comprehensive Income March 31 2023
Profit and Loss
Deferred tax assets relates to the following:
Provision For Compensated Absences 1.77 0.21 - 1.98
Provision For Gratuity 3.47 0.20 0.49 416
Provision For Labour Welfare Fund 0.01 0.01 B 0.02
Bonus Payable 0.18 0.82 - 1.00
Unabsorbed Depreciation And Business Losses 408.24 (51.20) - 357.04
Others 0.00 - - 0.00
Deferred tax liability relates to the following: - - =
Property, Plant & Equipment And Intangible Assets (146.54) 16.73 - (130.81)
Others . = . E
Total 267.13 (34.23) 0.49 233.39
Movement in Deferred Tax Assets (Net)
Particulars As At 'E;?g;lz:td;: Recognised in Other As At
April 01, 2021 Profit and Loss Comprehensive Income March 31, 2022
Deferred tax assets relates to the following:
Provision for compensated absences 2.00 (0.23) - 1.77
Provision for gratuity 0.92 1.86 3.47
Provision For Labour Welfare Fund 0.01 0.01
Bonus Payable 0.18 0.18
Unabsorbed depreciation and business losses 405.38 2.86 408.24
Others 0.27 (0.27) 0.00
Deferred tax liability relates to the following:
Property, plant & equipment and Intangible asset (145.19) (1.35) (146.54)
Others .
Total 263.38 3.06 267.13
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s Domestic tax rate for March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Accounting profit/(loss) before tax 121.59 (356.07)
Applicable tax rate * 25.17% 26.00%
Expected tax expense [A] 30.60 (92.58)
Lapsed unused carry forward losses for two assessment years - 90.53
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years - 0.60
Others- (Including change in tax rate adjustment) (65.16) (1.01)
Total adjustments [B] (65.16) 90.12
Actual tax expense [C=A+B] (34.56) (2.46)




Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited
(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)
Notes to Consolidated Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are in lakh ¥ unless otherwise stated)

Total tax incidence (34.56) 2.46

Tax expense recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss [D] (34.56) 2.46

The applicable tax rate is the rate applicable to domestic Company ~ March 31, 2023 : 26.00% (March 31, 2022 : 26.00%)

* During the current year, management has decided to adopt tax option under section 115BAA of Income Tax Act 1981, accordingly applicable
tax rate has changed.

[This space has been left blank intentionally]



Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited
(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts aré Ih lakh ¥ unless otherwise stated)

As At

Note 9: Inventories

478,33
285.48
0.31

Raw Materiale
Finistied Goods
Stores & Spares

744.12

a) For mode of valuation Refer Accounting Policy on Inventory Valuation in Note 2.1
As At

Note 10: Trade Receivables

Considered Good - Unsecured 513.44

Credit Impaired - Unsecured SR =

613.11
a) Amount includes dues from related parties (refer note 30)

b) Trade Receivables ageing schedule as on March 31, 2023

_March 31,2023

March 31, 2023

As At

March 31, 2022

350.19
281.19

631.38

As At

March 31, 2022

439,40

439.40

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6 6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years

Particulars months

More than
3 years

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables —
considered good

513.42 0.02 - =

513.44

(ii) Undisputed Trade receivables —
which have significant increase in = 3 .
credit risk -

(iii) Undisputed Trade receivables —
credit impaired -

(iv) Disputed Trade receivables — _
considered good

(v) Disputed Trade receivables —
which have significant increase in . = =
credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade receivables —
credit impaired

Less: Allowances for expected credit
loss

Net Trade receivables

513.44

Trade Receivables ageing schedule as on March 31, 2022

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6 6 months -1 year 1-2 years | 2-3 yoars

Particulars months

More than
3 years

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — =
considered good 439.40

439.40

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables —
which have significant increase in - 5 .
credit risk ~

(iiiy Undisputed Trade receivables —
credit impaired -

(iv) Disputed Trade receivables —
considered good -

(v) Disputed Trade receivables —
which have significant increase in S
credit risk :

(vi) Disputed Trade receivables —
credit impaired -

Less: Allowances for expected credit
loss

x/_
o

Net Trade receivables

&
Z

¢) Trade Receivables are non interest bearing and generally on terms of not more than 90 days.
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(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are In lakh € unless otherwise stated)

Note 11: Cash and Cash Equivalents

Balances With Banks
- Current Accounts
Cash on Hand

Kote 11.1 : Bank Balance Other Than Cash and Cash
Equivalents

Bank deposits having remaining maturity of more than 12
months

Amount disclosed under "Other Financial Assets" (Refer
note 6)

Note 12: Other Assets

(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)

Advances to Vendors
Balances With Government Authorities (Considered Good)

Balances With Government Authorities (Considered Doubtful’

Less: Provision for doubtul balances
Prepaid Expenses
Advance To Employees
Other Recoverable

As At As At
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

71.34 48.41
71.34 48.41
Non Current Current
As At At As At As At
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
18.75 17.58
18.75 17.58 - .
(18.75) (17.58) - &
Non Current Current
As At At As At As At

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

; 12.54 7.24
- 458.36 494.98
y 14.61 -

: (14.61) ;

- 424 3.77
: 0.58 0.10
. - 82.95

- 475.72 589.04




Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited
(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are Iin lakh  unless otherwise stated)

Note 13: Equlty Share Capltal As At As At
March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
Authorised
32,000,000 (Mar 31, 2022 : 32,000,000) Equity Share of ¥ 10 each* 3,200.00 3,200.00
3,200.00 3,200.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
30,09,6286 (Mar 31, 2022 : 30,99,6286) Equity Share of ‘¥ 10 each* 3,099.63 3,099.63
3,099.63 3,099.63
a) Reconclllation of authorised, issued and subscribed share capital :
i) Reconciliation of authorised share capital at the beginning of the year and at the end of year
Particulars No of shares* Amount
Balance as at April 01, 2021 32,000,000 3,200.00
Changes during the year E -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 32,000,000 3,200.00
Changes during the year = -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 32,000,000 3,200.00
ii)  Reconciliation of issued and subscribed share capital at the beginning and at the end of year
Particulars No of shares* Amount
Balance as at April 01, 2021 30,996,286 3,099.63
Issued during the year = =
Balance as at March 31, 2022 30,996,286 3,099.63
Issued during the year 5 =
Balance as at March 31, 2023 30,996,286 3.099.63

b) Terms/Rights attached to the equity shares
The Group has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥10 per share. Each holder of Equity shares is entitled to one
vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Group, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
Group, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the
shareholders. During current year ended March 31,2023, no dividend has been declared or paid.

c) Number of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% Shares in the Group

Particulars As At As At
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

No of shares” % Holding No of shares” % Holding

Sandhar Technologies Limited 30,996,285 100.00% 30,996,285 100.00%
Daewha Fuel Pump Ind. Limited ** - 0.00% - 0.00%

*{ Equity Share is held by Shri Jayant Davar and number of shares are given in absolute numbers.
- Equity Shares were transferred by Daewha Fue! Pump Ind. Limited , ref sub-note (e).

d) Detalils of shares held by promoters
As at March 31, 2023

No. of shares at Change during the No. of shares at o
NS i Promoter Name the beginning of year (refer note ‘e’  the end of the % of Total Shares % change during
0. the year
the year below) vear
1 Sandhar Technologies Limited 30,996,285 - 30,996,285 99.99% 0.00%
Equity shares of 10 each fully paid
3 Shri Jayant Davar 1 - 0.00%
Equity shares of 10 each fully paid
quity y p S ( NEw &
. .:,"T_' _-:
Total 30,996,286 /8- 2V80 30,996,288\ /= 400.00% 0.00%
"7

) “‘:’g}j‘m’&ﬁ“



Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited
(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are In lakh ¥ unless otherwlse stated)

As at March 31, 2022

No. of shares at No. of shares at
NS. Promoter Name the beginning of Giange d::'"“ the i oendofthe % of Total Shares ‘o change during
& the year b year the year

1 Sandhar Technologies Limited 16,173,143 14,823,142 30,996,285 99.99% 47 .81%
Equity shares of 10 each fully paid

2 Daewha Fuel Pump Ind. Limited 14,823,143 (14,823,143) - 0.00% 47.82%
Equity shares of 210 each fully paid

3 Shri Jayant Davar B 1 1 0.01% 0.01%
Equity shares of 210 each fully paid

Total 30,996,286 - 30,996,286 100.00% 96.64%

* Number of Shares are given in absolute numbers.

e) As per Share Purchase Agreement (SPA) executed on Decmebr 06,2021, the Joint Venture (JV) parties i.e., Sandhar Technologies
Limited(STL) and Daewha Fuel Pump Ind. Limited (DFPL) entered into mutual agreement pursuant to which STL has agreed to
acquire 1,48,23,143 equity shares held by DFPL constituting 47.82% of share capital of Group for a lumpsum consideration as agreed
in the SPA.

In effect of above, all the terms, conditions and obligations has set out in original JV Agreement between JV parties stands terminated
and shareholding of the Group to the extent of 99.99% of the total share capital is held by STL.

['This space has been left blank intentionally]
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(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are in lakh ¥ unless otherwise stated)

_ . As At As At
Note 14: Other Equity March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Retained Earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year (1,165.24) (809.16)
Add: Profit / (Loss) for the year as per statement of Profit and Loss 85.75 (356.08)
- Balance at the end of the year (1,079.49) (1,165.24)

a) For Movement during the period in Other Equity, refer “Statement of Change in Equity”.

b) Nature and purpose of other reserves
Retained Earnings: All the profits or losses made by the Group Companies are transferred to retained earnings from
Statement of Profit and Loss.

[This space has been left blank intentionally]



Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited
(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

{(All amounts are In lakh € unless otherwise stated)

Note 15: Provisions

Provision for Employee Benefits (Refer Note 34)
- Compensated Absenses

- Gratuity

Note 16: Trade Payables

- Outstanding Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises
- Outstanding Dues To Parties Other Than Micro And Small Enterprises

Non Current

As At As At
__March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
7.39 6.29
16.04 10.28
23.43 16.57

Current
As At As At
March 31, 2023 Murch 31, 2022
0.48 0.53
0.48 0.42
0.96 0.95
As At As At

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

206.91 22412
1,145.90 1,374.86
1,352.81 1,598.98

a) Trade Payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 90-day terms except for SME's (if any) which are settled within 45 days.
b) Amount includes duss to related parties (refer note 28)

c) The Group's exposure to market and liquidity risk related to trade payables is disclosed in note 34.
d) As per Schedule lil of the Companies Act, 2013 and as certified by the Management, the amount due to Micro & Small enterprises as defined in Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 is as under:

i) The principal amount and the interest dus thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year.

i) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2008), along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day
during each accounting year.
i)y The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006.

iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year.

v) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure
under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 20086.

203.71

1.31
1.89

224.12

Disclosure of payable to vendors as dsfined under the “Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006" is based on the information available with the Group
regarding the status of registration of such vendors under the said Act and as per the intimation received from them on requests made by the Group. There are no
overdue principal amounts / interest payable amounts for delayed payments to such vendors at the Balance Sheet date.

e) The amount does not include any amount due to be transferred to Investor Protection and Education fund.

Trade Payables at

eing schedule as on March 31, 2023

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Particulars Not due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Unbilled
years dues
(i) MSME 161.88 55.02 - - - - 206.91
{ii} Others 418,56 706.71 0.076 11.66 0.75 8.14 1.145,90
(iii) Disputed dues ) - = = = = =
— MSME
(iv) Disputed dues B T = - . - =
— Others
Trade Payables ageing schedule as on March 31, 2022
Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Particulars Not due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Unbilled
years dues
(i) MSME - 224 .12 - - - = 22412
(ii) Others - 1,361.00 11.12 - - 2.74 1,374.86
(iiiy Disputed dues - - 5 = i = =
— MSME
(iv) Disputed dues - - - & = o a
— Others

[This space has been left blank intentionally]
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n As At As At
g C
Note 17: Other Current Financial Liabilitles March 31. 2023 March 31. 2022
Security deposits payable 25.00 :
Creditors for capital goods 3.74 s
28.74 5
As At As At
Note 18: Other Current Liablilities March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Statutory dues 7.68 129.10
Advance from customers 25.95 0.69
33.63 129.79

a) Amount includes dues to related Parties of Nil

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are in lakh ¥ unless otherwise stated)

Note 19: Revenue From Operations

Sale of Product
Other Operating Revenues
Sale of Scrap

a) Performance Obligation
Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of products to the customers.

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

6,062.04 1,434.52
3.26 TAT
6.065.29 1.435.69

During the year, the Group has not entered into long term contracts with customers and accordingly disclsoure of unsatisfied or remaining
performance obligation (which is affected by several factors like changes in scope of contracts, periodic revalidations, adjustment for

revenue that has not been materialized, tax laws etc.) is not applicable to the Company.

b) Disaggregation of Revenue: The table below presents disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers on the basis of
geographical spread of the operations of the Group. These revenues are revenues which have been recognised at point in time. The Group
believes that this disaggregation besl depicts how the nature, amount of revenues and cash flows are affected by market and other

economic factors:

Particulars

Revenue by geography
- Within India

- Outside India

Revenue customer wise
- Related party
- Non-related party

c) Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities:

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

6,062.04 1,423.40
= 11.12
6,062.04 1,434.52

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

181.26 646.85
5,880.78 787.67
6,062.04 1,434.52

Ind AS 115 requires disclosure of ‘revenue recognised in the reporting period that was included in the contract liability balance at the
beginning of the period' and ‘revenue recognised in the reporting period from performance obligations satisfied (or partially satisfied) in

previous period. Same has been disclosed as below:

Opening balance of contract liabilities

Amount of revenue recognised against opening contract liabilities
Addition in balance of contract liabilities for current year

Closing balance of contract liabilities

d) Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers
Contract assets related to sale of goods

Contract liabilities related to sale of goods
- Advance from customers

e) Reconciliation of Revenue from operations with contracted price
Contracted Price

Less: Discounts and Other Schemes

f) Trade Receivables and Contract Balances
For Trade Receivables, refer Note No. 10.

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

0.69 60.44
(0.69) (60.44)
25.96 0.69
25.96 0.69

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31. 2022

25.96

0.69

25.96

0.69

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

6,062.04 1,518.98
- (84.46)
6,062.04 1,434.52

Further, the Group has no contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or services to the customer and payment

terms by the customer exceeds one year. In light of above;

- it does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money, and

- there is no unbilled revenue as at March 31, 2023.




Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited

(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are in lakh ¥ unless otherwise stated)

Note 20: Other Income

Interest income on
- Bank deposits
Miscellaneous Income

Note 21: Cost of Materials Consumed

~ Inventories at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases
Less: Inventory at the end of the year

Note 22: Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Work-in-
Progress

Opening stock
Finished goods

Closing stock
Finished goods

Note 23: Employee Benefits Expenses

Salaries, Wages And Bonus

Contribution To Provident And Other Funds (Refer Note 33)
Gratuity Expense (Refer Note 33)

Compensated Absences (Refer Note 33)

Staff Welfare Expenses

Note 24: Finance Cost

Interest Cost
- Interest on Loans
- Interest on Custom Duty (EPCG)
- Interest to Others

Note 25: Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

Depreciation Of Property, Plant And Equipment
Amortisation Of Intangible Assets

(This space has béen

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

1.31 1.22
0.58 0.11
1.89 1.33

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

350.19 26.28
5,381.08 1,878.43

(478.33) (350.19)
5.252.94 1,554.53

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

281.19 16.54
281.19 16.54
265.48 281.19
265.48 281.19

16.74 (264.65)

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

151.76 52.37
12.43 2.92
3.92 2.08
244 7.81
13.05 1.16
183.60 66.34

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

; 13.71
0.87 41.95
1.31 1.86
218 57.62_

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

169.26 177.24
0.97 1.10
178.34

Ationally left blank)




Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited
(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are in lakh ¥ unless otherwlse stated)

Note 26: Other Expenses

Packing Maletial Consumed

Stores & Spures Consumed

Power & Fuel

Advertising and business promotion

Repairs & Maintenance - Plant And Machinery

- Others
Irrecoverable debts/ advances written off
Contract service charges
Rent & Hire Charges
Rates & Taxes
- Provision for doubtful balances
Security Service Charges
Insurance
Travelling & Conveyance
Legal & Professional Fees
Payment To Auditors (Refer Note ‘a’ below)
Loss On Foreign Exchange Fluctuations
Loss on sale of fixed assets (net)
Bank Charges
Freight and Forwarding
CWIP written off
Miscellaneous Expenses

a) Details of payment made to auditors is as follows:

As auditor:
Statutory audit
Tax Audit
Other services

Note 27: Earnings Per Share

For the year ended

March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

33.16 8.77
2,15 1.00
8.75 6.26
4.99 "
5.01 1.69

12.59 6.41
0.96 -

76.84 :

51.98 13.24
0.38 25.71

14.61 -

12.88 12.72
4.69 5.67

31.28 1.36

20.99 53.75
1.85 1.80

- 0.01

24.08 -
0.28 0.20
1.72 1.89

- 59.15

11.75 1.38

320,93 201.01

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

1.20 1.05
0.40 0.50
0.25 0.25
1.85 1.80

Earning per share (EPS) is determined based on the net profit attributable to the shareholder before other comprehensive income. Basic
earning per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period/year whereas Diluted
Earning per share is computed using the weighted average number of common and dilutive equivalent shares except for the case where the

result becomes anti-dilutive.

(Loss)/profit attributables to the equity holders

Number of equity shares

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Weighted average number of shares used in basic earnings per share
Weighted average number of shares used in diluted earnings per share
Basic earnings per share (in ¥) (face value ¥ 10 per share)

Diluted earnings per share (in ¥) (face value ¥ 10 per share)

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

87.03
30,996,286
30,996,286
30,996,286

0.28
0.28

(354.11)
30,996,286
30,996,286
30,996,286

(1.14)
(1.14)
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Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited
(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)

Consolidated Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in lakh Z unless otherwise stated)

Note 31: Employee Benefits

1) Defined Contribution Plans

The group males contribution towards Employees Provident Fund and Employee’s State Insurance scheme tnder the rules of these schemes, the
group is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs. The group during the year recognised the following amount in the Statement
of profit and loss account under company's contribution to defined contribution plan.

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund & Other Funds™ 12.10 2.86
Employer's Contribution to Employee State Insurance 0.33 0.06

* The cantribution payable to these schemes by the group are at the rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

Il) Defined Benefit Plans

In accordance with Ind AS 19 "Employee benefits”, an actuarial valuation on the basis of “Projected Unit Credit Method" was carried out, through
which the group is able to determine the present value of obligations. “Projected Unit Credit Method” recognizes each period of service as giving rise
to additional unit of employees benefit entitiement and measures each unit separately to built up the final obligation. The method is used in following
cases :-

The group has a defined benefit gratuity plan for its employees. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the act,
employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member's length of
service and salary at retirement age. The group makes provision of such gratuity asset or liability in the books of accounts on the basis of acturial
valuvation as per the projected unit credit method in accordance with Ind As 19.

Movement of defined benefit obligation :
The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the year are as follows:

i) Remeasurements

Gratuity
(Unfunded)
Present value of obligation
April 01, 2022 10.71
Current service cost 3.14
Interest expense/ (income) 0.77
Total amount recognised in profit or loss year ended March 31,2023 3.92
Remeasurements
Loss due to change in financial assumptions 1.82
Loss/(Gain) due to experience 0.08
Gain due to change in demographic assumptions =
Total amount recognised in OCI 1.90
Benefits Paid =
As at March 31, 2023 16.52
Present value of obligation
April 01, 2021 5.97
Current service cost 1.67
Interest expense/ (income) 0.41
“Total amount recognised in profit or loss ended March 31,2022 2.08
Remeasurements
Gain due to change in financial assumptions (0.64)
Loss due to experience 3.29
Gain due to change in demographic assumptions -
Total amount recognised in OCI 2.66
Benefits Paid -
As at March 31, 2022 10.71
d) Net Defined Benefit Cost/(Income) Included in the Statement of Profit & Loss
Gratuity
(Unfunded)
2022-23 2021-22
i) Service Cost 3.14 1.67
i) Interest Cost 0.77 0.41

3.92 2.08




Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited
(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)

Consolidated Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts are in lakh ¥ unless otherwise stated)

Gratui
e) Amount included on account of measurement in Gratuity Valuation - OCI (UnfundteygL
2022-23 2021-22
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) 1.90 2.66
f) Actuarial Assumptions
The significant acturial assumptions were as follows :
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Discount rate 7.38% 7.22%
Salary growth rate 6.00% 5.00%
Mortality Indian assured lives mortality Indian assured lives mortality

(2012-14) (modified) Ultimate  (2012-14) (modified) Ultimate
Withdrawal rate
Upto 30 Years 10.00% 10.00%
From 31 to 44 years 3.00% 3.00%
Above 44 years 1.00% 1.00%

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors,
such as supply and demand in the employment market.

g) Sensitivity analysis
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2023 is as shown below:

Change in assumption Impact on defined benefit obligation
Increase by Decrease by
March 31, March March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2023 31,2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Gratuity
Discount rate 0.50%  0.50% (1.12) (0.71) 1.23 0.80
Salary growth rate 0.50%  0.50% 1.24 0.78 (1.14) (0.73)

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of
reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting year.

h) Defined benefit liability

The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted gratuity is as follows ; As At As At
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Less than a year 0.48 0.42
Between 1-2 years 0.42 0.30
Between 2-3 years 0.41 0.29
Between 3-4 years 0.40 0.29
Between 4-5 years 0.38 0.25
Beyond 5 years 14.42 9.16
Total 16.52 10.70

Ill) Other Long Term Benefits :

The group operates compensated absences plan wherein every employee is entitled to the benefit equivalent to 26 days leave salary for every
completed year of service subject to maximum 60 accumulations of leaves. The salary for calculation of earned leave is last drawn salary. The
same is payable during the service, early retirement,withdrawal of scheme, resignation by employee and upon death of employee. Expenses for long
term compensated absences amount to * 2.44 Lakh (March 31,2022 * 7.81 Lakh)

[This space has been left blank intentionally]
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Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited
(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)

Consolidated Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

{All amounts are in lakh ¥ unless otherwise stated)

Note 33: Fair Value Hierarchy

This section explaines the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are:

a) recognised and measured at fair value, and

b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the Consolidated financial statements.

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the group has classified its financial instruments into the three
levels prescribed under Ind AS 113. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table.

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels of in the fair value

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at March 31, 2023:
Fair value measurement using

Carrying Amount/

Amortised Amount Quoted prices in Significant Significant

actlve markets observable inputs unobservable inpuls

(Level 1) {Level 2) {Level 3)
Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost
Bank deposits having remaining maturity of more than 12 18.75 ’ } _
months ’
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 0.07 “ - =
Trade receivables 513.44 o - -
Cash and cash equivalents 71.34 - - u
Total 603.60 - . -

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for liabilities as at March 31, 2023:
Fair value measurement using

AC arryi_ng dAAmount!t Quoted prices in Significant Significant

A active markets observable inputs unobservable inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) _(Level 3)

Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost

Trade payables 1,352.81 - - -

Other financial liabilities 28.74 - 5 -

Total 1,381.55 - - -

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at March 31, 2022:
Fair value measurement usina

Carrying Amount/

- Quoted prices in Significant Significant
Amortised Amount active markets observable inputs unobservable inputs
{Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost
Bank deposits having remaining maturity of more than 12
17.58 - - -

months
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 0.07 - - -
Trade receivables 439.40 - = 2
Cash and cash equivalents 48.41 - - -
Total 505.46 e g -

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for liabilities as at March 31, 2022:
Fair value measurement using

Ac arrryti_ng dA:muntlt Quoted prices in Significant Significant
mortised AMOUnt ., tjve markets observable Inputs unobservable inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost

Trade payables 1,598.98 - - 1,698.98
Other financial liabilities - -
Total 1,598.98 - - 1,598.98




Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited
(Formerly Known as Sandhar Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)

Consolidated Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are in lakh ® unless otherwise stated)

The Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The finance and accounts team that has overall
responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements and reports directly to the board of directors. The leam regularly reviews
significant unobservable Inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information, such as quotes from brokers or as available in public domain, is
used to measure fair values, then the team assessas the evidence abtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that these valuations meet
the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hlerarchy In which the valuations should be classified. Significant valuation issues are

reported to the Gampany's hoard of directors,

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabllities.

Devel 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices)

Leve! 3: inputs for the asset or liabllity that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

¥here have been no transfers in either direction for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 Maicl 2022.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

The carrying amounts of short-term trade and other receivables, trade payables, cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances are considered
to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.

For other financial liabilities/ assets that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.

[This space has been left blank intentionally]
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Note 34: Financial Risk Management Objectives And Policies

The Group’s principal financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables and other financial liabilities. The main purpose of these financial
liabilities is to finance the Group's operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations. The Group's principal financial assets
include trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets.

The group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management oversees the management of these
risks. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

(1) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market
risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk.

a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The borrowings from Related party and other other borrowings are Nil as at reporting date, there is no volatility involved in respect of
interest payout and hence interest rate sensitivity is not given.

b) Foreign currency risk

Foreign Currency Risk is the risk that the Fair Value or Future Cash Flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign currency
rates. Exposures can arise on account of the various assets and liabilities which are denominated in currencies other than Indian Rupee. The
group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as on March 31, 2023.

() Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss.
The group is exposed to credit risk from their operating activities, primarily trade receivables, which has outstanding balance of ¥513.44 as at
March 31, 2023(March 31, 2022: ¥ 439.48). The customer credit risk is managed by group as per established policy, procedures and control
relating to customer credit risk management.

- Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on an extensive credit rating. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored.

- Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the
Company's policy.

(1) Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that group will encounter in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset. The approach of group to manage liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that these will have sufficient
liquidity to meet their respective liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses
or risk damage to their reputation.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

Less than 1 vear 1 to 5 years > b vears Total
As at March 31, 2023
Trade payables 1,352.81 E - 1,3562.81
Other financial liabilities 28.74 - - 28.74
1,381.65 - - 1,381.56

As at March 31, 2022
Trade payables 1,587.86 11.12 - 1,598.98
Other financial liabilities

1,687.86 11.12 - 1,6598.98

[This space has been left blank intentionally]
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Note 35: Capital Management

i) For the purpose of Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves

attributable to the equity holders of the Company.

ii) The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the shareholder value and also ensure ability
to continue as a going concern. In order to maintain the optimal balance of Debt and Capital, the group manages its capital

structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions.

iii) The group monitors Capital & Debt balance using Capital Gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net

debt:
Particulars As At As At
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Trade Payables 1,352.81 1,5698.98
Other Financial Liabilities 28.74 -
Other Current Liabilities 33.64 129.79
Less: Cash and Cash Equivalents (Refer note 11) (71.34) (48.41)
Adjusted Net Debt (A) 1,343.85 1,680.36
Equity Share Capital (Refer note 13) 3,099.63 3,099.63
Other Equity (Refer note 14) (1,079.49) (1,165.24)
Total Capital (B) 2,020.14 1,934.39
Net Debt and Capital (C=A+B) 3,363.98 3,614.75
Gearing Ratio [D=A/(C)] 39.95% 46.49%

a) No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31,

2023 and the year ended March 31, 2022.

[This space has been left blank intentionally]
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Note 37:

No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the Group to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding, whether recorded In writing or otherwise, that the inlermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on
behalf of the group (Ultimate Beneficiaries). The group has not received any fund from any party(s) (Funding Party) with the
understanding that the group shall whether, direclty or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on
behalf of the group (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

Note 38: Other Statutory Information

(a) Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency

(b) Benami Property held under Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder

(c) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies except charges mentioned in note 21(ii) of the
Consolidated financial statements.

(d) Relating to borrowed funds:

i) Wilful defaulter

i) Utilisation of borrowed funds & share premium

iii) Borrowings obtained on the basis of security of current assets

iv) Discrepancy in utilisation of borrowings

Note 39: In view of the management, the current assets have a value on realization in the ordinary course of business at least
equal to the amount at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023.

Note 40: Figures have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs except otherwise stated.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited (Formerly Known as Sandhar
Daewha Automotive Systems Private Limited)

=2y \ -
(Ashish Vatsa) (Naveen Kumar)
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

A~
l’rﬁh Chauhan)
Director
DIN: 03555013
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haels
(Sakshi Goyal)
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